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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISES MARKET (“GEM")
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a high investment risk may be attached. In
particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track record of
profitability nor any obligation to forecast profitability. Furthermore,
there may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies
listed on GEM and the business sectors or countries in which the
companies operate. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater
risk profile and other characteristic of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is
publication on the Internet website operated by the Stock Exchange.
Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid
announcements in gazette newspapers. Accordingly, prospective
investors should note that they need to have access to the GEM
website at www.hkgem.com inorder to obtain up-to-date information
on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange takes no responsibility for the contents of this report,
makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from on or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of New Chinese Medicine Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate
and complete in all material respects and not misleading, (2) there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this
report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been
arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases
and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION 2 7 & #}

COPRORATE PROFILE DR

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 30 October, ARNBATIR_EEEE+A=THEREHER
2000 as an exempted company with limited liability under the BRESHELAE (RETN MK IAZHRE
Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the RAF e RABIRHD IR _ZEE_F=ZRAtA%E
Company were listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 7 B PrEIER £ -
March, 2002.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS E=g

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HTES

Mr. Wong Chun Keung Chairman BEREE TE

Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon Chief Executive Officer TRESE THAEH
Mr. Fung Cheuk Nang Clement BEREEE

Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia EmZ A
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BIYFHTES

Mr. Chu Kar Wing RAEREE

Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) B & A iE -

Mr. Ku Ling Yu John BREELEE
COMPANY SECRETARY DNEWE

Mr. Law Kwok Chung BEEALEE
COMPLIANCE OFFICER ERTfE

Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia EmZ A
QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT SEREEE

Mr. Law Kwok Chung FEBDEE
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES EERR

Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon FTRELSE

Mr. Law Kwok Chung BEBEE

AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREES

Mr. Chu Kar Wing AEREE

Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) b= BB 1

Mr. Ku Ling Yu John BEGEE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMZEES

Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia EmE A

Mr. Chu Kar Wing RERLE

Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) BEEMIE L

Mr. Ku Ling Yu John BEGELE
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AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants
31/F, Gloucester Tower

The Landmark

11 Pedder Street

Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
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Century Yard, Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681GT

George Town, Grand Cayman
Cayman Islands

British West Indies

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 802, Tower 1

Harbour Centre

1 Hok Cheung Street

Hunghom, Kowloon

Hong Kong

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Standard Registrars Limited

26/F, Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

GEM STOCK CODE
8085

WEBSITE ADDRESS
http://www.ncm.com.hk
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT * /& # &

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am AANEBREZEZG([EFG)MAZRAEAL
pleased to present the annual results of the Company and its AREMNBRR([AEE)HEZSE F=A
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March, 2006. =+—H JJ:@TEZETQ%A

2005/06 signifies both a difficult but yet important year ZEER/ERFHASEMEREEEX
for the Group. At the beginning of the year, the lack of EEN—F - FY BB ZABREFEIR
working capital severely affected operation of our retail arm SETEXEBCEE - ASBERERN TR
of the business. We have then sized down our retail business FHABRZEEB AR TEAREEZE
in May 2005 and restructured our overall business strategy. BEBEE BELARBIAN2EE: K&
With the injection of fresh working capital in July, our position BB HERAARNMSE - FEBHEEEBKE
was significantly strengthened. Our new management team BEMEGEBRELT - REEHEHBUR
had spent very strong efforts in resuming our business back REEGE-—FHE -
to normal. Our financial position is then expected to improve
towards the end of the year.

We consider that human health is very important in AEERRABREEEEEAMEE THE
humanity and citizens’ life nowadays. By this belief, we expand Z ROBRBZANTERBEE - BREEEE
our business on health care products that are with quality S AERBEEFTEEMER I REERER - &
and efficacy. We wish to create a win-win situation to both EEFEZARGRATEWEARGEERR
the Group and people of Greater China. On one hand, the He—FH AEEBXENRBEREL S 5
Group will benefit from the health care product business, —FHHE AEEZRBEGSTEDIEARR
and on the other, this will bring healthy living to the people EREMNADESERE -
who really concern themselves with their health and that of
their families.

To continue the road of success, the Group will prolong BTRERKNZEE  AEEBEERT
our finance strategy to maintain a tight control over its BREHHEERRAZ CHBER - KREEETEH
management expenses. We will keep on exploring every RASEBEAREEELRIMGARGERTECE
business opportunity that may generate additional synergies o AEBMEE RENHBN - BUgE—F
and wealth to the Group. We believe that, with our hard EEASEERREBARL TS -
efforts, we would further reinforce our market position in
health care related businesses.

Looking ahead, in view of the gradual economic recovery BEHR EREE BFIRPE =&
in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC, the Group anticipates EEMEE  AEEEFRERERERZER
steady growth in its existing as well as development of future ARG REER -
businesses.

APPRECIATION Bt

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this AABENKE KRXESCHMAERIESE
opportunity to express our sincere gratitude to all our equity BA BEPFREBEBEHEAEE-EHE2XF 7
holders, customers, business partners who have always offered LDEBHRORH EREREIMTHNE
their continued support, confidence and encouragement. The N EBASETEHRE c BREZSIHE A&
devotion and diligence of the management and staff BEMEERZRE  RELAEERFILEEE
committing secured a continuous improvement of the Group. R 1% & B o
With these supports remain, we shall continue to explore
ways to improve on the business results and investment returns
of the Group in the year ahead.

Wong Chun Keung a7
Chairman HER
Hong Kong, 19 June, 2006 58 ZEEREAATAE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & 2 E &t i K 7 4

BUSINESS REVIEW

In view of the rising consensus and awareness of the public to
health, the Group continued to fine-tune its product range,
expanding on health care products from its existing proprietary
Chinese medicine and retail sales of consumable products. During
the year under review, the Group managed to wholesale and retail
a series of health care products from an established well known
brand-name manufacturer. This was producing a fruitful contribution
to the turnover of the Group.

For the financial year ended 31 March, 2006, the Group recorded
an audited turnover of HK$9,016,957 which representing a 12.6%
increase comparing to that of 2005. The gross profit margin returned
to positive of HK$1,252,983 from a gross loss of HK$179,654 in
2005.

The Group also managed to maintain tight control over its
operating expenses in the period under review. The general and
administrative expenses decrease from HK$7,694,494 in 2005 to
HK$5,175,815 in 2006, representing a decrease of 32.7%.

PROSPECTS

The directors believe that the Group will benefit from the
economic growth in both Hong Kong and the PRC which will support
increase in consumer spending and the number of visitors to Hong
Kong and Macau in the foreseeable future. The directors will continue
to monitor the product range with the aim to improve on the profit
margin.

In order to promote the series of well known brand-name health
care products, the Group devoted a lot of resources to building
product branding and public awareness. Moving forward, the Group
plans to spend a few millions, in the coming future from its working
capital, on advertising campaign so that these health care products
that are with quality and efficacy will benefit more citizens of Hong
Kong. The management believes that this eventually will come to a
win-win situation for both the Group and the consumers.

At the same time, the Group will identify other business
opportunities that may create synergies with its core business and
to further reinforce its market position in health care related
businesses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & 2 B &t i K 7 47

FINANCIAL REVIEW Bf 7% O 8

Audited net loss attributable to the equity holders for the year HEZZZERF-A=T—HLFE KT
ended 31 March, 2006 amounted to HK$1,332,011 as compared to B2 EEEEAEEEBEEAR1,3320118 T B2
net loss of HK$3,425,660 for the corresponding period in 2005, ST RFRENERTEAB3,425660% T
which represented a decrease of 61.1%. 61.1% °

On 6 July, 2005, the Company obtained shareholders approval RZBEZRFEARE  AARRBRERH
at an extraordinary general meeting to consolidate every four shares A EREREME  BEEREREEONE
of HK$0.01 each of existing shares into one share of HK$0.04 each TZHRBERMEHA-REREE0.04HE T2
("New Share"); and allotted and issued 450,000,000 New Shares at e ([5G » RIZEITEGR0.0478 Tl %
an issue price of HK$0.04 each to Excel Point Holdings Limited. The K % 17 450,000,000/ #7 % 17 T Excel Point
above transactions were completed on 11 July, 2005 with additional Holdings Limited e EMRZ ZERZEZRF LA
HK$18,000,000 cash, before professional expenses incurred for the T—HAZEK - AAE BT K 18,000,000/ 7T (K
transactions, in the Group. The financial resources will be partly RRGMEEAZEXER) 2RSER - UKER
used as additional working capital to expand on existing businesses BEBOPBIERRRAEEK CEINEEES - Mk
and the balance for development of related businesses. REERAEREERER -
LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL RBEE  WHERREXRE
STRUCTURE

The Group’s net current assets as at 31 March, 2006 was RZBEZREF=A=1+—0 AEEZRH
HK$8,970,966 as compared to net current liabilities of HK$5,216,461 BEFELNA970,9668 T  R_ZEERAF=H
as at 31 March, 2005. There were no bank borrowings as at 31 —T—HZRBAEFELNARS216461ET ° B
March, 2006 (31 March, 2005: Nil). ZEEREZACT-RUERITER(RZEE

AF=RA=+—-B: 8

On 29 December, 2005, the Company obtained shareholders RZBEZRF+_A=ZF+NB  ARaRK
approval at an extraordinary general meeting to issue a redeemable RENRG LMERFELAE - BTRARARIEKSE
convertible bond (the “Bond”) of the Company in the principal 410,000,000 L2 AF A ER AT 2R EH
amount of HK$10,000,000 with a term of 5 years for full settlement ([E%]) > U2 EIEE12,229,742.7078 T 2 &
of a long-term borrowing amounted to HK$12,229,742.70. Holder fER - ERFAABAERRERRRH0.072E T2
of the Bond shall have the right to convert the Bond into shares of B BREFARRFRRD - Ll %%TTZ
the Company at the price of HK$0.072 per share. Details of the FEHR_ZTRFT_AT=ZABHZAA
above Bond issuance were set out in the Company’s circular dated K o

13 December, 2005.

GEARING RATIO EESFALR

As at 31 March, 2006, the Group’s gearing ratio, being the RZBEERE=ZA=+—H FEBEEE
ratio of total liabilities to total assets, was approximately 87% (2005: EELX(NEEBRAEELE L) K87%
approximately 1,067 %). (ZEZTRF 1,067%)
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE HNE BB

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in Hong Kong REBRRZBMAREEZKAREZUET
Dollars and considers that the impact of foreign exchange exposure HEURRBAEEZINERRYEHRBEM -
of the Group is minimal.
CHARGE OF GROUP ASSETS KEEERR

As at 31 March, 2006, the Group did not have any material NR_TERE=HA=+—H AEEVEHL
charge on assets (2005: Nil). MEREEER (ZZEZHEF - &) o
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
The Group had no significant investments during the period.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
The Group had no material acquisitions or disposals during the
period under review.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 March, 2006, the Group employed a total of 3 (31
March, 2005: 5) full-time employees in Hong Kong. During the year
ended 31 March, 2006, the total staff costs, including directors’
emoluments, amounted to HK$1,801,520 (2005: HK$1,082,346).
The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance,
qualification, experience and the prevailing industry practice. Some
directors waived their remuneration for the year ended 31 March,
2006.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March, 2006, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities (2005: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March, 2006, the Group had commitment for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating lease in
respect of rented premises which fall due within one year amounting
to HK$12,320 (2005: HK$202,415).
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS % % /& it

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES

Mr. Wong Chun Keung, aged 53, is the chairman of the Group. BEREE S3% RAKEIRE -EEAE
Mr. Wong is responsible for overseeing the formulation of corporate BEEERARECERBHE - ERERZ
strategy of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Group on 20 July, SRFEAZ+AMBEAEE - BEX4EREHE
2005. Mr. Wong has extensive experience in trading, merchandising BB -UREGRERREHEREARR
and logistics businesses, and financial and real estate investments. BB BRFNRPEMNEEHETS - BEE
He is also active in the Singaporean real estate market in recent BEBETREH ERBREELER  BYARAAE
years. Mr. Wong has management and investment experiences in o

different areas which may be beneficial to the Company.

Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon, aged 46, is the Chief Executive ITHREELE  dom RASETRAER T
Officer of the Group. Mr. Wong is responsible for the overall REBREAGECERBERRERLE - T54E
management and business operations of the group. Mr. Wong joined RZEZERFNA=T—BMEREE - T4
the Group on 31 August, 2005. Mr. Wong holds a Master of Business BFEXEmMMAZ s INERELEMN - T 5%
Administration degree from the University of Southern California. HEZRHEE BRVEZERREFTEAA2S
Mr. Wong has over 25 years’ experience of securities trading, FULZRE  TRAZEAREREREHE 2
international property development and investment and holds ARBIZESZ - TAECHE—FHUNBERERE
directorships in a number of private companies in the investment e BBRAAREEEERESRTHAER23
and commercial sectors. Mr. Wong has served for over 23 years as Fo

one of the senior executives of an international private investment
group based in Hong Kong.

Mr. Fung Cheuk Nang Clement, aged 29, is the executive BEERE  295%  RAEENTESE -5
director of the Group. Mr. Fung is responsible for the Group’s AHEBREAEE KBRS AREME AR
strategic planning; research and development; and marketing MEHEER - BLER-_ZETAFtA=-1H
operations. Mr. Fung joined the Group on 20 July, 2005. Mr. Fung MBEEAEE - BAERELEHERBEEHEEBE
has gained extensive management experience in the development mZBERERKR - BSEETREERTEZME
and manufacturing of consumer products for a number of years. BEELEAZIAREBERRZES - BREHEE
Mr. Fung is also a director of a number of established privately- EIRBREEMBHARNR ZHETERRH -

owned manufacturing companies in Hong Kong and PRC. His
knowledge and expertise in the manufacturing industry may be
beneficial to the Company in research and development areas.

Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia, aged 42, is the executive director of BMZNME 425 RASEHRTES - &
the Group. Ms. Tong is responsible for the business; sales and MEEEARE &R HERTIGHEESE -
marketing operations of the Group. Ms. Tong joined the Group on =N #HB’\_ ETRFELAZTHANEAREE - &
20 July, 2005. Ms. Tong is the chairlady of the remuneration MNEBARRFMEECER - B\ EEBES
committee of the Company. Ms. Tong is experienced in management 5’%&59|\?£E$%ﬁ&¥i‘%?§)f&2§§?‘“%ﬁ =N
and business development both in Hong Kong and overseas. Ms. ERERETEEATF  HhOEEESER
Tong has been engaged in the tourist-retailing industry for over 10 BHA  PImMEELBE - BVAKEERE
years which include the supervision of various investment projects hE . REKEEED  URRAAHKREDHK -

such as the operation of the Duty Free Shops. She will be responsible
for research and development in Chinese medicine, health and skin-
care products as well as new investment opportunities.

8 ANNUAL RePorT 2006 4 3




INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Kar Wing, aged 49, was appointed as independent
non-executive director on 6 October, 2004. Mr. Chu graduated from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a degree in Social Science
in 1979. He has over 20 years of experience in the banking industry
and commerce. He is currently an independent non-executive director
of three Hong Kong listed companies, namely Emporer Entertainment
Group Limited, Oriental Investment Corporation Limited and
Foundation Group Limited.

Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam), aged 56, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit
committee of the Company on 6 October, 2004. Dr. Loke has over
30 years of experience in accounting and auditing for private and
public companies, financial consultancy and corporate management.
He holds a Master of Business Administration degree from Universiti
Teknologi Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration degree
from University of South Australia. He is a Fellow of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales; Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants; and the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. He is also an Associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and a member of the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants. He is the Chairman of MHL Consulting Limited. He
also serves as an independent non-executive director of Shandong
Molong Petroleum Machinery Company Limited, United Metals
Holdings Limited, Matrix Holdings Limited, Yanion International
Holdings Limited and Wealthmark International Holdings Limited,
companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ku Ling Yu, John, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 20 July, 2005. Mr. Ku is a
practising solicitor and Notary Public in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. Mr. Ku is also qualified to practise as a solicitor
in England and Wales, and in Victoria, Australia. Mr. Ku served
firstly as a non-executive director and later as an executive director
of Magician Industries (Holdings) Limited during the period from
June 2000 to March 2005.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT i ¥ E & # &

OVERVIEW BB

The Board of the Company is pleased to present this Corporate ERAZCESEMAREFHRARZEHEZZ
Governance Report in the annual report for the year ended 31 EERF-A=-+—HUEFEZEERRSE -
March, 2006.

It is always a key concern of the Company to have high ARATHEERBFREREZLEER -
standards of corporate governance. It is important because the Board HEREZ RAEFgHE RERILXE 2 a
believes that good quality corporate governance would assist the BENEREERMEERRA 2 EBKEH -
management to monitor the Company’s business activities effectively it RIE#E R B AZFIZE o

and thus equity holders’ interests will be well protected.

The Board will discuss the code provisions set out in the Code SR B REIER ETRAN ST S
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in ZEEERTHTA(TREE LR &I 2F
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Company’s compliance ABENRARBRBE_SEEAE=A=+—H
and deviations throughout the year ended 31 March, 2006. FEEETRIRECEE RTHZER -
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS ESETZRERE

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding AEECRNEHAESHITERRH BT
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the SRl %ﬁTttE'J%WJ:F‘U_?%EE\'J%SASES.W%Z
required standard of dealing as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the ROGBERFTER - KR BEZFLRTEENR
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the fé %%B’\%Zi_ ZZERFZA=T—-BLEE
directors have complied with such code of conduct and the required ETHHARTTARRGELEZRE -

standard of dealings throughout the year ended 31 March, 2006.

THE BOARD Exg

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the EXe AT ERESEARA  UHRAER
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success FREEREEESKEDHAREME ﬁXUJ Ffr
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All directors FESYRELEBEM{E AR AR ZRE °

should take decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board currently comprises 7 members, consisting of four ESgiRAtENEBANK  BENANT
executive directors and three independent non-executive directors. ESR-ABUNITES - mEREE - BE
Mr. Wong Chun Keung, Mr. Fung Cheuk Nang Clement and Ms. BEEEREMZ)NER-ZTERFLA-THE
Tong Pui Chi Lucia were appointed as executive directors on 20 July, ZERBTES - TREAER_ZTRF T
2005. Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon was appointed as an executive AZTNABRZEARNTES - BERBLENRC
director on 29 December, 2005. Mr. Ku Ling Yu John was appointed EERFLA-tHEZAEABUIERITES -
as an independent non-executive director on 20 July, 2005. Their RE/BRFBENERZZEZEHNIAN - B
brief biographical details are described in the “Profile of Directors” BRE REBELLT  REBLEERMREZHE
of the annual report. Mr. Wong Cheah Foo, Ms. Leung Oi Wah, Mr. RZZEZRFLA-THBRARTESZBK -
Gao Junging and Professor Lin Daquan resigned as executive directors HRAXERZETRENA=-T—BHEHT
on 20 July, 2005. Mr. Kam Yiu Ming Wilfred resigned as an executive BEEVBE BAEGAER-_TTRFLAZ
director on 31 August, 2005. Mr. Junya Kabeya resigned as an THBREBUYIRNTES BT - REREER
independent non-executive director on 20 July, 2005. Mr. Chu Kar EEMBLREE-_STAF=A=T—HILE
Wing and Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) served as independent BEEN—BETBIIFRTES -

non-executive directors for the whole year ended 31 March, 2006.
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The Board meets at least four times a year to review the financial EXe—FRIBANAGE  URIEE
and operating performance of the Group. BlrUBREERR -

There were 30 Board meetings held for the year ended 31 BE_ZZRF=-A=+—BLEELTT
March, 2006. Individual attendance of each Board member at these 3ONEECCH  REBEFYRNELFERSTEEL
meetings is as follows: BRMT :

Attend/
Eligible to attend
HERE

Name of Director EEME HEERHEEZRE

Executive directors HITES

Mr. Wong Chun Keung HEREE 16/19

Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon FRERE 6/6

Mr. Fung Cheuk Nang Clement BT E 14/19

Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia EmZ /N A 19/19

Mr. Wong Cheah Foo HEBLE 0/12

Ms. Leung Oi Wah 2EEL T 11/12

Mr. Kam Yiu Ming Wilfred HERLEE 14/14

Mr. Gao Junging =EERE 0/12

Professor Lin Daquan MR 2 HE 0/12

Independent non-executive directors BIHTES

Mr. Chu Kar Wing REEEE 26/26

Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) BEGMIE L 25/26

Mr. Ku Ling Yu John ERELE 14/15

Mr. Junya Kabeya BEARIE % & 0/12

In compliance with Rules 5.01 and 5.02 of the GEM Listing RETRIZER TTRNEHEBIERTES
Rules in regarding to independent non-executive directors (the (H%I#iﬂﬁ%%J)Z%S.M&%S 021§ » AL
“INED(s)"), the Company has currently three INEDs, namely Mr. Chu RARB-RBUITESE  DIARERE
Kar Wing, Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) and Mr. Ku Ling Yu & BEEMELINERELE HEBLIAGEE
John. Dr. Loke has the appropriate accounting expertise. These INEDs ZEHEENE BREBUERTEEEHER
can help the management to formulate the Group’s development BHEREB ERER HRESGRRET
strategies, ensure the Board prepares its financial and other FEARR - GEEB B RE MR T 2 ®mE
mandatory reports in strict compliance with required standards, and URARAARMITBE ZHE  UWREARRA K
ensure the Company maintains appropriate system to protect the HEZRBAZHEZ ZEE2B WIS BILIEH
interests of the Company and its equity holders. The Board has TEERAEBYUMBLEFERAE - YAER
received the annual confirmation in respect of their independence REFRTBEE  HE2BLUFARIERET
from each of the INEDs, and believes that their independence is in RAZHE -
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules at the date of this annual
report.
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DISTINCTIVE ROLES OF CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IRRTBRARZAEAAG
OFFICER

Under the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief executive BECEERTA  ERERTRERZAG
officer should be separated and should not be performed by the EZAH MAEHER—BATER - EERT
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman BRHBEREERAT  WAEEHT -
and chief executive officer should be clearly established and set out
in writing.

Mr. Wong Chun Keung is the chairman of the Company who is BEREERARALIE AREERESFS
responsible for managing the Board and overseeing the formulation REBASBECERBIEIE - TREEERAR
of corporate strategy of the Group. Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon is DNETHREH  BEFAKE ERERRELKE
the chief executive officer of the Company who is responsible for N
the overall management and business operations of the Group.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS ESCZERER

The CG Code 4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors should TEERTHINATHFATESNLAES
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. EEMH UERIEMER-

All the non-executive directors of the Company do not have a AARAFRRTESUEETHESR - A
specific term of appointment. However, in accordance with article - BEAR2ABERBRESTER  RERK
87 of the articles of association of the Company, at each annual REEXREL BREFEIRRIETFHLE
general meeting, one third of the directors for the time being (except I BR=Nz—EE(GREFGKBESEZ
those directors appointed by the Board under article 86 to fill a FCEENERMTERAFTETEERZFRZE
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall be subject to —RBRRELRAEREEEERBEEIN) - Kl
retirement and shall be eligible for re-election at the first annual BEVH=pz—2RBE8 BASER=H2—
general meeting after their appointment), save and except the EBERBEER=ZD2 W ABERE -
chairman of the board and/or managing director, or, if their number
is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not greater than one-third, shall retire from office.

The CG Code 4.2 stipulates that every director, including those rEEATIIATEREZ (BEAETEL
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by HrER)BEL)B=FHERET K -
rotation at least once every three years.

Article 87 of the articles of association of the Company does ANFEBERARESTHRL BB TEARRF
not require the chairman of the board and/or managing director of CEEEIRE/JEZFLRERGRIARRAEF
the Company to retire from his office at each annual general meeting. RELRE - RERT2ETLEERTRL2
In order to ensure full compliance with the CG Code 4.2, a special REERRERE L BRE-BEIRER - K
resolution will be proposed to amend the relevant provisions of the BEAAARZABERBRFEBG  BEFH
articles of association of the Company at the forthcoming general EZHEZSE-FHERT R -

meeting so that every director of the Company shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES

An audit committee was established with written terms of ARRIERBAIZER ETHRANZBEBHRTEK
reference in compliance with the relevant GEM Listing Rules. There V—EAEZZEe  UUESEILEESEE -
are three members in the audit committee comprising three Hﬁ’f?%iﬁ’*ﬁﬂ_%ﬂziéﬂﬁi CBEEME R
independent non-executive directors, namely, Mr. Chu Kar Wing, NEERSELE BEEMBIRERELAE -
Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) and Mr. Ku Ling Yu John. The %’f?;,\ EZIE%EE%Eﬁ$ A 958
primary duties of the audit committee are to review the Company’s CHFEREREERE  UMERNEZTZR
annual report and accounts, half-yearly report and quarterly reports @i\%%&ﬁﬁ o %Tiéﬁﬁ—iﬂaii‘iﬁi%@é%
and to provide advices and comments thereon to the Board. The TmReE  URSAREREMNZ 2 RAIR
audit committee meets at least four times a year with management B THREZER APEERVBERES
to review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the H RHEZZZAF-A=+—HLEFER"
Group and to discuss audit findings, internal control and financial BEREEGRUTTHAEH SZ88NEHE
reporting matters. The audit committee met four times during the ZEGRLBERET

year ended 31 March, 2006, individual attendance of each committee
member at these meetings is as follows:

Attend/
Eligible to attend
HERE
Name of Director EEME HEERHEEZRE
Independent non-executive directors BYUKFHTES
Mr. Chu Kar Wing REEEE 4/4
Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam) BEG AR L 4/4
Mr. Ku Ling Yu John EEPE k& 3/3
Mr. Junya Kabeya BEARNE 0 % A& 0/1
The Group’s audited consolidated results for the year ended 31 AEBBE-TE R F=-A=T—HLLFE
March, 2006 have been reviewed by the audit committee. REBERGEEER éﬁ’fiiiﬁ“gﬁﬂ °
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE ¥MEzEg
A Remuneration Committee has been established with written PMZESERBLEBTARTRZATRK
terms of reference in accordance with the requirements of the CG o WAEES ﬁﬁ%%fl FMEEgH=
Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent EBUFNTEE  DRIRREREE  BEEK
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chu Kar Wing, Dr. Loke Yu BL BERGELER—BUTEZEEMZ/)EA
(alias Loke Hoi Lam) and Mr. Ku Ling Yu John, and one executive BKeBEMZINEAFWNEESZEE - HINEZE
director Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia. Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia being the BYIERBECRARETERANAEEME 2
Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee. The principal HERBER VASEERSLEEEETH
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include making & REBESETRHARAELATAERENS
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy, and ME2RBATEERaREEEZFEMEES -

structure for remuneration of all directors and senior management,
and reviewing the specific remuneration packages of all executive
directors and senior management by reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.
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During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
held one meeting and the attendance record is set out below:

Committee members

Executive directors
Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Chu Kar Wing

Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam)

Mr. Ku Ling Yu John

REMUNERATION OF THE AUDITORS

For the year ended 31 March, 2006, the Audit Committee had
reviewed the performance of Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
("HLB") as the external auditors of the Company and proposed to
re-appoint HLB as the external auditors. The auditors’ remuneration
for the year ended 31 March, 2006 is HK$275,000 (2005:
HK$250,000).

RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARATION OF THE ACCOUNTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing of
the financial statements of the Group. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Accounting Standards have been adopted
and appropriate accounting policies have been applied consistently.
The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties or events
which may have a significant impact on the Company’s ability to
operate as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors had prepared
the financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis.
The responsibility of the auditors is set out in the “Auditors’ Report”
in this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The directors have overall responsibility for the establishment,
maintenance and review of the Group’s system of internal control.
For the year ended 31 March, 2006, the directors periodically
reviewed its internal control system to ensure its effectiveness and
adequacy, which embraced financial, operational and risk
management control.

COMMUNICATION WITH EQUITY HOLDERS

The directors will meet with the Company’s equity holders and
answer enquires raised by them in the annual and special general
meetings.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2006.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the sales of healthcare products in Hong
Kong. The activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note
30 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March, 2006
are set out on the consolidated income statement on page 23.

No interim dividend was declared for the year ended 31 March,
2006 (2005: Nil).

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 March, 2006 (2005: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the published results, assets, liabilities
and minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years
and reclassified as appropriated, is set out on page 64. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS
Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 24 to
the financial statements.

For the year ended 31 March, 2006, no share options were
granted (2005: Nil). Details of the Company’s share option scheme
are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the

date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. Wong Chun Keung Chairman
(appointed on 20 July, 2005)
Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon Chief Executive Officer
(appointed on 29 December, 2005)
Mr. Fung Cheuk Nang Clement
(appointed on 20 July, 2005)
Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia
(appointed on 20 July, 2005)
Mr. Wong Cheah Foo
(resigned on 20 July, 2005)
Ms. Leung Oi Wah
(resigned on 20 July, 2005)
Mr. Kam Yiu Ming Wilfred
(resigned on 31 August, 2005)
Mr. Gao Junging
(resigned on 20 July, 2005)
Professor Lin Dagquan
(resigned on 20 July, 2005)

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Chu Kar Wing
Dr. Loke Yu (alias Loke Hoi Lam)
Mr. Ku Ling Yu John
(appointed on 20 July, 2005)
Mr. Junya Kabeya
(resigned on 20 July, 2005)
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In accordance with the provisions of the Company ’s articles of
association, Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon and Mr. Ku Ling Yu John
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS BEERBER

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service EHTEZTYERARARIREBZE 15
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years ABH=F AQUBEBELREZEHR—FREZ—FH
which will continue thereafter until terminated by either party by BHTPR=Z@AZEAEABAKILEAL - B
giving to the other not less than three months prior written notice. UHBTEEWHRREEEREE -

The independent non-executives are not appointed for specific terms.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE EENRERGHZER

Save as disclosed in the “Directors’ Service Contracts” and the BRIEZEZREAOINIEBEBES S IH
“Continuing Connected Transactions”, no contracts of significance BEIN ARG ETAHELARMEREL T
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in AARESHESHEREEARSERAFE
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether TEBIAEEFMABEEARZEAEL -

directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN EERTHEAZNE S 2ES
SECURITIES

As at 31 March, 2006, the interests and short positions of the R-ZBERE=ZA=+—B ' AR_FEEN
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, THEREEREZEALRBAEEN ([EARHE
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its 1651 1) EEXVEL Z 7R ESD EFBME AR A) I B
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the THZARNT S ETAEEEZE (Tx RESNH
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were required to EIEPIEXVED) 2 HERDREFZER N
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to KE (BEREEALBERIEEEXEERS
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short ESRIEBE 7RI A E) » IREBAFLBE
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such &0 E 352G B AR BEREFEZELM iR
provisions of the SFO) or as recorded in the register required to be BEIER ETHEBFES A6 ESTETES
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise SEELEEME@RNNRNBIRMZEZRN LA D
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the N

minimum standards of dealings by directors as referred to in Rules
5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions in Shares of the Company READNBBRBZHE
Interest in the

Director Type of interest Company's share capital Number of shares

£ ERER REAQNR 2 RAES iR =

Mr. Wong Chun Keung Corporate (note 1) 62.58% 354,980,000

BREEE % (Far)

Notes: Kiat -

1. These shares are registered in the name of Excel Point Holdings 1. R bAExcel Point Holdings Limited# 7

Limited, a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Wong B O BAREREESEERESR -
Chun Keung.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March, 2006, none of the BRENHEBEREEN RZBERE=ZRA=+
directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests —B ARARESRITREBRYEREREES
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of RHEEHIEXVE 2 ETRESD HAME AR A
the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning RE R ARRSKEEAERZE (EERES
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the REVE GAIEXVER) 2t - BERGOIES 2 FE
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of MEmIAE (BEREES LHEERDIE B KX
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they REREERGIERB 2 RRIAR) - IRIEE
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), HRAE GO EI2HARARRARAREFEZERL
or which were required to be recorded in the register kept by the fit - SKIBFAIER TR ES 46 BHERA
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to AR R SOKE ©

the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR ESWBROSES ZER
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ BRREXTESRITRBENER 2B
Interests In Securities” above, at no time during the reporting period BEEN  RBREHEAR - AR A HETMK B
was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any NEMESEIVEMRY  REARREERA
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire EWERARA N EAAMEAEE 2 RHIES
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities, EFr(AEER MEN MEEFIHREZESB
including debentures, of the Company or any other body corporate, ST N\BA T2 F R BEREAMNYRERRF
and none of the directors or their spouses or children under the age BHEIEN  FTIETEEAZERETR -

of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,
or had exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERR

As at 31 March, 2006, the interests and short positions of RZZEERNEZA=+—"H BEEREZS
persons, other than a director or chief executive officer of the RHEEAEXVHZ E2REIDBARARD AR
Company, in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which BRREZARARNO REBERD 2 #EE KK
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of B YERAEEREBURASETEMEMNKE
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who is, directly or RAIZEERRE 2 —NBERATHHRERF 2
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any AR AZEES %A L2 RZZ AL (R
class of share capital carrying rights to vote on all circumstances at BARBESHTRAR) ABBEEFLBER
general meetings of any other members of the Group, or substantial FIE3B6HEREARRAARTE 2 BLMALHZF
shareholders as recorded in the register required to be kept by the ZREMNT :

Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Number of shares held (long positions) FEROHE (FR)
Direct/indirect Approximate percentage
interest of shareholding
Name of shareholder BRRER B/ BE#R ERBNEAL
Excel Point Holdings Limited (note 1) Excel Point Holdings Limited (75 1) 354,980,000 62.58%
Ms. Chu Cheong Hing Jenny (note 2) RS2/ E (Af:2) 40,160,128 7.08%
Mr. Pang Wing Keung (note 2) Ek® &L (H5F2) 40,160,128 7.08%
Notes: fit &t
1 Excel Point Holdings Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by 1. Excel Point Holdings Limitedd3 A& B X E &
Mr. Wong Chun Keung, the chairman of the Group. HEREEL2EERHESR °
2. These are joint interests of spouse held by Ms. Chu Cheong Hing 2. WAKEBNMARZKESERGHEREZ

Jenny and Mr. Pang Wing Keung.

18 ANNUAL RePorT 2006 4 3




32 @R AR AT New CHNESE MepiciNE HoLbings LiMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT £ £ & # &

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March, 2006, the directors or BREXHBEEN  RZEERE=ZA=T
chief executive officer of the Company were not aware of any other —B BRARBESHITREHMA - WETMA
person (other than the directors or chief executive of the Company) HEWAT (TOEAAREEITHAH) EER
who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying BEHFRBERIEXVBZE2REIDIHERE
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the RABBAFZARARDIEBRD 2 =K
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of KR REEXEERAIRNREE M EME
the SFO or, who is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more BRAIZRERG 2 —IBATHEREER 2
of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to AR A 2 EES %A £ 2 s - SR
vote on all circumstances at general meetings of any other members MEERREFBECAREES RBAEKHIE336
of the Group, or any other substantial shareholders whose interests BREARAEREZERMIERZIXE -

or short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES BE BOILEARTZLTES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, RAEFEER - KNA R E AN ER R BE
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the BE BERNgHEARAZEIMENES -
year.
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS TERFRHER

During the year, the five largest suppliers of the Group RAEFERN AEEERAMHERERAEE
accounted for approximately 60% of the Group's total purchases BREEFEN60%  MAKEZFAHEREREE
and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately BBEENM% AEEBELREP ZMAHE
54% of the Group's total purchases. Aggregate sales attributable to BIEREHEEENLI6%  MAEBRAELIE
the Group’s five largest customers were approximately 46% of the EEBEHEEN27% °

Group’s sales while the largest customer of the Group accounted
for approximately 27% of the Group’s sales.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders of BEE HEZBEBALHIARREMBKR
the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more (MEEEMA HARRABEITRAS%NU £
than 5% of the issued capital of the Company) had any beneficial BVUERNBE_TERF=A=-+—HILEWHF
interest in the Group’s major suppliers and customers for the financial EAREAASBETZHBEAREPRHEEEM
year ended 31 March, 2006. BmiEm o
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS HFEBRERS

There was no related or connected party transaction under the BE_TTRF-A=+—HLFE  X&
GEM Listing Rules entered into by the Group during the year ended ERETVAER EMRNET 2 EMABEL
31 March, 2006. BEALRS -

COMPETING INTERESTS BEER

As at 31 March, 2006, none of the directors, the management RZEERNE=ZA=1—"H AQAZE
shareholders of the company and their respective associates (as = EEERERESZBEZHEAL (RAIZER
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in a business FTRACER) MEREREEEBEREER
which causes or may cause a significant competition with the FRAGBREERF 2 EBHEEEMER -

business of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT £ £ & # &

AUDITORS 7% L1
The financial statements have been audited by HLB Hodgson UBERRCCEFEHMEEMEZ  BE
Impey Cheng who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for BHMEBRMARME EHRAERBEBEE
reappointment. To
On behalf of the Board REESE
Wong Mo Wah Gordon T4,
Chief Executive Officer TEE
Hong Kong, 19 June, 2006 BE ZEERF~ATNA
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AUDITORS’ REPORT # # B # &

B # & < 6% ¥ % 5

Hodgson Impey Cheng

HLB

Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NEW CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 23 to 63
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDITORS

The Company's directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view, it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis,
of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Group's and the Company’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance
as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

BHNBEZRARAT
ERR
(RESHEEIMAZZBERLA)

ARHMTE TN ERERF23EF63AR
REBLREHRUIBH M BEE -

EERGHUMBECESR
ERRIZESRAARMBEEANT MK

BE - EMEZEEEARNF IR BRERE &
EVRERRBABZEEE -

AZEMBEENREAZHMEZTIEZ
BR UZSUBHRRELBIER YRA2
BERHBE  RUEMINABRERNEEMBR - K
REEM AR ARERND M EERE M A LAR
FBLEE-

BERzEM
AZHMHRBREBGHMNRERMLER
REEETER I BREBREAMES
AERAMBREABEZLBELREZTHRAR L
BE DTERFHEERREZSVBRRE M
E2EARRGE LA  ARAZEHTHEREEE
AR EXER BERRIZABBAKRELER
RRAYRHRBEZFSAHE -

AREMERS RETER TR - AR
BREAGEMBAVTELENRBERRER
EAREEMEESENERE  ALXEFBHERE
LBHRAERBRBAELEEIHEE - HEHE
RE ARBMTCEHEZSHBRRAEFEH
ERBLEEORA - ARBEAEE - AREE 2
ERTHERTIERRESE CER -
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AUDITORS’ REPORT # 2 B # &

OPINION BR

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair AREMABR  BBHBRRHGEBERA TR
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at B EEER BRARZZEERF=-RA=1-—
31 March, 2006 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the BzHBMRAE BEERHEZBLFEZE
year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance BRReTE  VOEBRBEBRAKRINZEER
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies THERE
Ordinance.
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng BEestmERm
Chartered Accountants EEFF T B 5T AD
Certified Public Accountants BEBHE SR
Hong Kong, 19 June, 2006 aE ZEERESATNA
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT # & 18 &= &

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZE-TEAF=-A=+-BILFE

2006 2005
—EEXRE —ETRE
Notes HK$ HK$
fi i BT BT
Turnover BES 7 9,016,957 8,011,404
Cost of sales HE R A (7,763,974) (8,191,058)
Gross profit/(loss) ER,/ (B#E) 1,252,983 (179,654)
Other operating income Hi &l A 8 829,535 4,799,087
Gain arising from the Deed BEREBEE2HE
of Settlement 2(c) 2,229,743 -
General and administrative expenses -BRRTHER (5,175,815) (7,694,494)
Loss from operations REEE 9 (863,554) (3,075,061)
Finance costs K& 10 (468,457) (350,599)
Loss before taxation BAEE (1,332,011) (3,425,660)
Taxation g 13 - -
Loss after taxation BBEE (1,332,011)|  (3,425,660)
Attributable to: THALERN:
Equity holders of the Company ARFRE/FEA 14 (1,332,011)|  (3,420,760)
Minority interests DEBRRE S - (4,900)
(1,332,011) (3,425,660)
Loss per share BRER
Basic and diluted EAR#E 15 (0.3) cent (2.9) cents
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET #z &€ & E B f& %

As at 31 March, 2006 W-ZZX=H=+—8

2006 2005
ZBERE “TTRE
Notes HK$ HK$
fi BT BT

Non-current assets E(RBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME  BERRE 16 72,880 266,615
Current assets RBEE

Inventories of finished goods at cost R RFE - ERE 990,957 762,313

Trade and other receivables JRE A2 B 3R R L th B U 3R TR 18 1,015,702 522,717

Bank and cash balances RITRBSHEF 19 13,516,622 216,340

15,523,281 1,501,370

Current liabilities RBAE

Other creditors and accrued charges HipEHERIEREAER 20 6,552,315 6,680,873

Amount due to a director B —REERIA 21 - 36,540

Tax payable FERHIR - 418

6,552,315 6,717,831

Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE,/(BF) FHE 8,970,966 (5,216,461)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTBAR 9,043,846 (4,949,846)
Non-current liabilities E(¥RBEE

Unsecured loan EIREE R 22 - 12,151,147

Bond, unsecured ERRE S 23 7,054,359 -

7,054,359 12,151,147

Net assets/(liabilities) &/ (AR FE 1,989,487 | (17,100,993)
Capital and reserves BAR #E

Share capital [N 24 22,690,000 4,690,000

Reserves ] (20,700,513) | (21,790,993)
Equity attributable to the equity ERTEBRFEA

holders of the Company PEfh fE = 1,989,487 | (17,100,993)
The financial statements on pages 23 to 63 were approved and FLEEFCELUMBRELERZZTZTNER
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 19 June, 2006 and ARThBREFTSHAREKESRT  THTHE
signed on its behalf by: ERKREE

Wong Chun Keung Wong Mo Wah Gordon
BER ITRE
Director Director
- EE
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BALANCE SHEET ¥ # & 8 &

As at 31 March, 2006 W-ZZX4=H=+—H

2006 2005
ZEERE “ZTRE
Notes HKS$ HK$
B BT BT
Non-current assets E¥RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBARIZRE 17 - 5,100
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A B 700R 17 2,498,971 -
Trade and other receivables JFE R R N A B M R 0R 18 126,187 140,063
Bank and cash balances BIRBEeHER 19 11,676,123 3,438
14,301,281 143,501
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary N —RMEABZE 17 - 5,100
Other creditors and accrued charges HinERNERBERETER 20 289,485 812,619
Amount due to a director EN—ZEEFA 21 - 25,500
289,485 843,219
Net current assets/(liabilities) FEEE/(BE) FE 14,011,796 (699,718)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER 14,011,796 (694,618)
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Unsecured loan EHEBER 22 - 12,151,147
Bond, unsecured BEAES 23 7,054,359 -
7,054,359 12,151,147
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (8 FE 6,957,437 | (12,845,765)
Capital and reserves BAR#E
Share capital R AR 24 22,690,000 4,690,000
Reserves & 26 (15,732,563) | (17,535,765)
Equity attributable to the equity AAREREFA
holders of the Company EihER 6,957,437 | (12,845,765)

Wong Chun Keung
BER
Director

EF

Wong Mo Wah Gordon
TRE
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES INEQUITY 4 & % # B &

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 #E-TEAF=-F=+—-BILFE

Attributable to the equity holders of the Company

KAARRRAARL

Share Share Special  Exchange Bond Accumulated Total  Minority Total

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve losses  reserves interests equity

ke RHEE RHRE ENRE BSRE  RAER  REEE JHRREE  ERAR

HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS

A A A AT A A A AT A

As at 1 April 2004 RZZEMERA-H 46,900,000 19,008,723 (39,998,440) 341,319 - (39,786,475) (60,434,873) - (13,534,873)
Bichange differences o~ A EE

translation of foreign LEREE

operations - - - (145,360) - - (145,360) - (145,360)
Expenses recognized EERERTED

directly in equity LER - - - (145,360) - - (145360) - (145360)
Loss for the year TEEBE - - - - - (3420760) (3420760)  (4900) (3,425,660)
Total income and expenses A EE D

recognized for the year LR EE - - - (145360) - (3420,760) (3,566,120) (4,900) (3,571,020
Adjustments arising from &l BRAEE 2R

the Capital Reduction (R 240)

(note 24(i)) ) (42,210,000) - - - - 42,210,000 42,210,000 - -
Capital contribution bya D EHELE

minority shareholder - - - - - - - 4900 4,900
As at 31 March 2005 N-EFRF-fA=1-A 4,690,000 19,008,723 (39,998.440) 195,959 - (997,235) (21,790,993) - (17,100,993)
Bichange differences on RS EH

translation of foreign LEAEE

operations - - - 125,797 - - 125,797 - 125,797
Income recognized directly  EERMERPED

in equity ZBA - - - 125797 - - 15797 - 15,797
Loss for the year TEEBE - - - - - (1332011) (1332,011) - (1332011)
Total income and expenses AR EE R

recognized for the year 2K BE - - - 15797 - (1332,011) (1,206,214) (1,06,214)
lssue of 450,000,000 new  RER AR K

shares under the Share 17450,000,000%

Subscription Agreement  HR(3 (5 200)

(note 2(b)) 18,000,000 - - - - - - - 18,000,000
Share issue expenses R EER - (739,100) - - - - (739,100) - (739,100)
Equity component of Ex RAERDH

the Bond (note 23) (H23) - - - - 303579 - 3,035,794 - 303579
As at 31 March 2006 RIEEREZA=T-B 22,690,000 18,269,623 (39,998,440) 321,756  3,035794  (2,329,246) (20,700,513) - 1,989,487

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the acquired subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at
the time of the group reorganization prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares in 2002.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT % & % %

5

JIb é -ﬁ'-

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZ =TT F=F=+—HI5E

2006 2005
—EEXRE —TTRE
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Cash flows from operating activities REXBHRERE
Loss from operations REEE (863,554)| (3,075,061)
Adjustments for: BRI EBEERE
Gain arising from the Deed of Settlement BRZBEE 2 WHE (2,229,743) -
Interest income B WA (281,115) (4)
Depreciation of property, plant ME - WEREE
and equipment ZITE 25,095 274,056
Impairment loss of property, plant WE - WEREE
and equipment 2 REEE - 74,597
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE R
and equipment HiEEE 258,078 -
Allowances for doubtful debts RERE - 772
Operating cash flows before changes in HEBASEHA
working capital JIRERERE (3,091,239)|  (2,725,640)
Changes in working capital: LEESEE
Inventories of finished goods at cost BRMEE  ERA (228,644) (762,313)
Trade and other receivables JRE Ui BR 31 K E At B U KB (492,985) 1,088,972
Amount due from a director JEl —EEZHIE - 34,615
Other creditors and accrued charges HEtENRERETER (128,558) (751,052)
Amount due to a director JEff—ZEEHIA (36,540) (1,979,973)
Amounts due to related companies JEfT RN R FUA - (261,930)
Cash used in operations KEEBEMRERE (3,977,966) (5,357,321)
Interest paid BFE (24,779) (350,599)
Tax refunded ERERIE - 329,160
Tax paid BT HIE (418) (4,748)
Net cash used in operating activities REELEBFERSFE (4,003,163) (5,383,508)
Cash flows from investing activities RETBH2HERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEDE  BERRAB (89,438) (282,452)
Interest received B F 8 281,115 4
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZBMEB /()
investing activities BERE 191,677 (282,448)
Cash flows from financing activities METBH2HERE
Increase in unsecured loan B UL N 1,291,763 8,351,147
Repayment of unsecured loan BEELBEER (1,566,692) (2,500,000)
Net proceed from issue of new shares BIIMRG 2B RIEFE 17,260,900 -
Capital contribution from a minority shareholder D& E H& - 4,900
Net cash generated from financing activities ®EZEHMEHSTE 16,985,971 5,856,047
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BeRBESEEY 2 EMEE 13,174,485 190,091
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FAZREERS
of the year ZEY 216,340 171,609
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXEBHTE 125,797 (145,360)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FX&ZHERBSZEEY
Representing bank and cash balances RERITRBEEEF 13,516,622 216,340
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Bf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZ =TT 4=A=+—HAILFE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

New Chinese Medicine Holdings Limited (the “Company"”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 30 October, 2000 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) on 7 March, 2002.

The Company’s registered office is situate at Century Yard,
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681GT George Town,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands, British West Indies and its
principal place of business is situate at Room 802, Tower I,
Harbour Centre, 1 Hok Cheung Street, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the sales of healthcare products in Hong
Kong. Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 30 to the financial statements.

The directors consider the ultimate holding company as at 31
March, 2006 to be Excel Point Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and which is wholly
and beneficially owned by Mr. Wong Chun Keung, the chairman
and executive director of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% #% #& K/ &

2. CAPITAL RAISING ACTIVITIES
During the year ended 31 March, 2006, the Company undertook
the following capital raising activities:

(a)

(b)

Share Consolidation

On 30 May, 2005, the Company announced that it proposed
to consolidate every four shares of HK$0.01 each in the
capital of the Company into one new share of HK$0.04
each (the “Share Consolidation”). Immediately before the
Share Consolidation, the authorized share capital of the
Company was HK$200,000,000, comprising
20,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each, of which
469,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued and fully
paid. Immediately following the Share Consolidation, the
authorized share capital of the Company remained at
HK$200,000,000, comprising 5,000,000,000 shares of
HK$0.04 each, of which approximately 117,250,000 shares
of HK$0.04 each were in issue.

Details of the Share Consolidation were set out in the
Company'’s circular dated 20 June, 2005 and the resolutions
in respect of the Share Consolidation were duly passed by
the Company’s shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 6 July, 2005. The Share Consolidation
became effective on 7 July, 2005.

Share Subscription

On 30 May, 2005, the Company announced that it had
entered into a conditional subscription agreement dated
27 May, 2005 (the “Share Subscription Agreement”) with
Excel Point Holdings Limited (the “Subscriber”) and Mr.
Wong Chun Keung (as the Subscriber’s guarantor), pursuant
to which the Company agreed to allot and issue, upon
completion of the Share Consolidation, 450,000,000 shares
of HK$0.04 each in the capital of the Company (the
“Subscription Shares”) to the Subscriber or its nominees at
a subscription price of HK$0.04 per Subscription Share (the
“Share Subscription”).

The Subscriber also entered into a placing agreement dated
27 May, 2005 with a placing agent, pursuant to which the
placing agent, as agent of the Subscriber, agreed to place,
on a fully underwritten basis, 95,020,000 Subscription
Shares at HK$0.04 each to independent investors upon
completion of the Share Subscription.

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZ =TT F=F=+—HI5E

2;

REEH
BE_ZTRE=A=+—HBILEE &2
ABETUTEEED

(a) BBr& 6
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Bf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZ =TT 4=A=+—HAILFE

2. CAPITAL RAISING ACTIVITIES (continued)
(b) Share Subscription (continued)

(c)

Details of the Share Subscription were set out in the
Company’s circular dated 20 June, 2005 and the resolutions
in respect of the Share Subscription were duly passed by
the Company's shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 6 July, 2005. The 450,000,000 Subscription
Shares were issued on 11 July, 2005. The Subscription
Shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with all other
shares then in issue.

The net proceeds derived from the Share Subscription
amounted to approximately HK$17.3 million. As of 31
March, 2006, approximately HK$6.7 million have been used
for general working capital. The remaining HK$10.6 million
were placed with banks and intended to be used as general
working capital or for making future investments should
there be appropriate investment opportunity identified by
the Group.

Deed of Settlement and issuance of the Bond

On 25 November, 2005, the Company announced that it
had entered into a deed of settlement dated 24 November,
2005 (the “Deed of Settlement”) with Mr. Ng Siu Fung
(the "Creditor”), pursuant to which the Creditor irrevocably
agreed that the Remaining Indebtedness of
HK$12,229,742.70 shall be settled by the issuance of a
redeemable convertible bond (the “Bond”) by the Company
to the Creditor in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$10,000,000 with a term of 5 years. A gain of
HK$2,229,743 arising therefrom has been taken to the
consolidated income statement for the year.

By a loan agreement dated 17 January, 2005 entered into
between the Creditor and the Company, the Creditor agreed
to advance up to the extent of HK$15,000,000 to the
Company and the Company promised to repay the Creditor
principal plus interest accrued at the rate of 5.25% per
annum on or before 30 June, 2006. The Creditor advanced
an aggregated sum of approximately HK$13,095,017.72
to the Company as working capital since entering into of
the said loan agreement, and as at the date of the Deed of
Settlement, the balance of the indebtedness outstanding,
inclusive of principal, interests, fees, costs or otherwise
(the “Remaining Indebtedness”), amounted to
HK$12,229,742.70.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # #& Mf &

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZE-TEAF=-A=+-BILFE

2. CAPITAL RAISING ACTIVITIES (continued) 2. REEY (#)
(c) Deed of Settlement and issuance of the Bond (c) BREBRRTES (8)
(continued)
In consideration of the Creditor agreeing to settle the ERERARERBERZRERNH
Remaining Indebtedness pursuant to the Deed of BEIRE  NAARZZETAE+—
Settlement, the Company entered into a bond subscription )51 THREBERATIESFRER
agreement with the Creditor on 24 November, 2005, B ARRIREBITMERAR
pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue and the EREES BHEBELFZE—FFREH
Creditor agreed to subscribe for the Bond. Further details R Bk M 23 o
of the Bond are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.
Details of the Deed of Settlement and the bond subscription %’ifk?@ﬁ%&ﬁ?ﬁ ?ééfﬂ %ZT 5REW
agreement relating to the issuance of the Bond were set BLABERARAR_EZRF T
out in the Company’s circular dated 13 December, 2005 A+=H ?'J%Zﬁl_l ﬁﬁﬁf%ZB&*“
and the resolutions in respect thereof were duly passed by ERZZEERFTA-+NBETZ
the Company’s shareholders at the extraordinary general Hﬁ%ﬁ AARE FERDARREAR
meeting held on 29 December, 2005. The Bond was issued cEFERZEERF-AZTERE
to the Creditor on 27 January, 2006. TTT_'\"{ 7 N
3. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 3. EREBUBBEERN SHBELH
STANDARDS/CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, a REFEE  AEBEARAEESHNAE
number of new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards BH2ZEEHERTBREER ([EEH
("HKFRSs"), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and BHREEA]) BAQHEN([EBGTE
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as “new Q) R2EB(TXHEAIHEESBREE
HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Bl])  WEAR-ZETRF—A—Hzzk
Accountants that are effective for accounting periods beginning Fitgc 25T EIE - HAFEBY BRELER
on or after 1 January, 2005. The application of the new HKFRSs BYEREGERER  HKEEEBEBERRESRE
has resulted in a change in the presentation of the consolidated RRBYRENAAEMNE  LHRENE
income statement, consolidated balance sheet and consolidated LEBREREZZENAR c ZEEVAFAZ
statement of changes in equity. In particular, the presentation E&ﬁﬁL&“ﬂféﬁ cHRAMB AV B RE ER
of minority interests has been changed. The changes in BRASEGHREENTEIAEMN
presentation have been applied retrospectively. The adoption of 2 O WHASHEEIRTEHAEFRERL
the new HKFRSs has resulted in changes to the Group's REREINFNERTZE

accounting policies in the following areas that have an effect
on how the results for the current or prior accounting years are
prepared and presented:
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For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZ =TT 4=A=+—HAILFE

3

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS/CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 32 “Financial
instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” and HKAS 39
“Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement”. HKAS
32 requires retrospective application. HKAS 39, which is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January, 2005,
generally does not permit the recognition, derecognition or
measurement of financial assets and liabilities on a retrospective
basis. The principal effects resulting from the implementation
of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 are summarized below:

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The Group has applied the relevant transitional provisions in
HKAS 39 with respect to the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities that are within the scope
of HKAS 39.

Under HKAS 39, financial assets are classified as “financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss”, “available-for-sale financial
assets”, “loans and receivables” or “held-to-maturity financial
assets”. “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
and “available-for-sale financial assets” are carried at fair value,
with changes in fair values recognized in profit or loss and
equity respectively. Available-for-sale equity investments that
do not have quoted market prices in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments are measured at cost less
impairment after initial recognition. “Loans and receivables”
and "held-to-maturity financial assets” are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method after initial
recognition.
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3 B @ 4 R A R A 5 New CHINESE MepiciNE HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # #& Mf &

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZ =TT F=F=+—HI5E

3. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 3. EREBMBREER SHBRED
STANDARDS/CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES (4&)
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued) B IR (&)
Financial assets and financial liabilities MBEEERYBAR
From 1 April, 2005 onwards, the Group has classified and R-_ZTHEMB—BE ZEEREES
measured its financial assets and financial liabilities other than B ERERCHRENERFEEBEE R
debt and equity securities (which were previously outside the RAZBHFUIINCHBEERIBEE (KA
scope of SSAP 24) in accordance with the requirements of HKAS S ERERFE24FTRESEE LN - 1 E
39. As mentioned above, financial assets under HKAS 39 are XFrit c BA SR ENEIRET 2 HBKE
classified as “financial assets at fair value through profit or EXBRIBEAFEFAANEZR VKA
loss”, "available-for-sale financial assets”, “loans and El [AHEUBEE]  [EF N EWTE]
receivables” or “held-to-maturity financial assets”. Financial KB BERINMACHBEE] - UBKEE—
liabilities are generally classified as “financial liabilities at fair BABRIMEATESABRRLHBEE]
value through profit or loss” or “other financial liabilities”. KEMMBAE] - HATFEAABRRZ
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are MBBERATEFE MATEZEZHE
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value being REZREEIR EtBMBAERERE
recognized in profit or loss directly. Other financial liabilities RERBEBRNSEREHEKAINE - 1L1E
are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method PHOHASHFERBEGHEE CERY
after initial recognition. This change has had no material effect BERNTE o

on the results for the current and prior accounting years.

Share-based payment DRORBERZFR

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 2 “Share- RAFEE  AEERAESHBRE RS2
based Payment” which requires an expense to be recognized IR AER AR ERBRTEELRE
where the Group buys goods or obtains services in exchange ELARGOSRBROEN(TRAGEERS]) - &
for shares or rights over shares (“equity-settled transactions”), Ht R EHERODIABRNENSECLEE
or in exchange for other assets equivalent in value to a given ([ReBEERGDERBEEERIME RS
number of shares or rights over shares (“cash-settled ZRE - BIERRFAE - BEMBEREEL
transactions”). The principal impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group B2URHAEECFEZESRAARAES
is in relation to the expensing of the fair value of share options REERTERER RERERLARE
granted to directors and employees of the Company, determined ELAFTEEREBEBHATHE REAES
at the date of grant of the share options, over the vesting BB mEERFE2RA  AEEEEREET
period. Prior to the application of HKFRS 2, the Group did not FRTERRAZETERECTBELE - A&
recognize the financial effect of these share options until they BER-_TZ-_F+-AtBZABLMY
were exercised. The Group is required to apply HKFRS 2 ARZZTRF—A—BEBZBERERY
retrospectively to share options that were granted after 7 ERBBMBRSEYNER - ARBREALD
November, 2002 and had not yet vested on 1 January, 2005. Al BRARBRARERETSRLE 2
The adoption of HKFRS 2 has had no material effect on the EEBRER_ZZERF-—A-—HAIBEBRZ
results for the current and prior accounting years as all the ZTRE-ATEHAMEAY  RABATH
share options granted under the Company’s pre-IPO share option BERNFE2REANEHEFERBEICHER
scheme vested before 1 January, 2005 and lapsed before 17 CEBUWERERTE - Ut - BRELBA
February, 2005. Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been FELAE-

required.
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For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZ =TT 4=A=+—HAILFE

3. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 3. EREAMBREED SHBXED
STANDARDS/CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES ()
(continued)
The HKICPA has issued the following standards and EROHAS D EG T Mk &% &8

interpretations that are not yet effective. The Group has
considered the following standards and interpretations but does
not expect they will have a material effect on how the results
of operations and financial position of the Group are prepared

LB AKECZERTIERRE
TAERERENRRRR U ARE K
EXRERMBMAZBER2INTANEKE

and presented. AW&-

Notes

Ft &t

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital Disclosures 1
BB G ERE W (KB PR % B
HKAS 19 (Amendment) Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures 2
BEHA G ERE 195 (KIEET) BEER  SEHERKRE
HKAS 21 (Amendment) Net Investment in a Foreign Operation 2
BEHA G ERE215 (KIEET) BNEBREFE
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions 2
BEH G ERE 395 (KIEE]) BRAEBAR Sz RERBH A
HKAS 39 (Amendment) The Fair Value Option 2
BB G ERFE 395 (K1EFT) N EHE

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 (Amendments)  Financial Guarantee Contracts 2
HRGRTELEINREE BBERED
B 75 5 B AR (LB ET)

HKFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources 2

ERMBREERF65H BEERZHRNE

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures 1

BRI BRELENETR BBIA: K&

HKFRS - Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease 2

ERUBRELEN — REFEIHR ErTZHREBENRE

HKFRS - Int 5 Rights to Interests Arising from Decommissioning, 2
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

ERUBRELEN — REESH BILEE ERERRREEECHEEER ZEMN

HK (IFRIC) = Int 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market - 3
Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment

ER(ARVBHRERBEES) SEFETS - BEBENRETREMELZEE

- 2EF6%
HK (IFRIC) = Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under HKAS 29 4

EE (BRMBREREZES)
- REETHR

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
BEEASHENFE2IFELHBRECEREMBERE 2
BIHRA

Notes: fitat

1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January, 2007. 1. R-FFLF-A—BIZERRARZFEBRE

2. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January, 2006. 2. %ggg NE—A—- Bz ERB 2 FE A

3. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 December, 3. %f?gﬂi‘f A—Hsz&Rn s FEH

4. ég‘ggt.ive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March, 2006. 4. ;E\__igg SEZA- Bz ERB 2 FE A
2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # #& Mf &

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZE-TEAF=-A=+-BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. TEEHEBR
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on REMBHRRDIZBELKREERE -
the historical cost basis.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in GREMBBRREBEEVBERELENGEEH - it
accordance with HKFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial I BRENBREEBEEAHEARIIMER
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules NRABIEREFSZ LR (TR ER LT
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise A1) REBARGIMBAECERBERE
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM e

Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation RERBEEE

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial REMBRREERRARAENBE AR 28
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. BHE -

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the REAFEMREXRLECMBAT ZEE -
year are included in the consolidated income statement from HERKEARIBEEERLEA L GRER
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of BARAME) STALZEERE °

disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial MEFRE HBenMBERARAMBRRELR
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies B OQEHEGHRERAEBEMKERT
into line with those used by other members of the Group. EREER—% -

All significant intra-group transactions, balances, income and EEENRAMZRS « &8 WARR
expenses are eliminated on consolidation. IREERAREE -

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries GREMBARCEERERZVEREER
are presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. BASEZRAEESFRES - EEFEN
Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of ZOPERERGBENREREHARZZ
those interests at the date of the original business combination ERECENREEVEBURLERREN
and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of ZEEEY  LERREGEEBL D ER
the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of RRMBAREERAE R CEZHE - BHE
the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated AEBRERELHE  HLERFEAEHR
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that the HEREERNEHEIMENEREER
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an Brop o

additional investment to cover the losses.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary represents
the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary at the date of
acquisition. Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Capitalized goodwill arising on an acquisition
of a subsidiary is presented separately in the balance sheet.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first,
and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis
of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognized directly in the income statement.
An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amount
of goodwill capitalized is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is a company that is controlled by the Company,
where the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of such company so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # #& Mf &

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZ =TT F=F=+—HI5E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. TEBTFER (#)
Property, plant and equipment ¥ BERRE
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less ME - BB RREREKANRZEITE R 25
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. WEBETE -
Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of ME BERIEBEEEMGFIRFHR
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives R AEMHFSREE  UWESERTIF
and after taking into account their estimated residual value, BT AT E UM E A A

using the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter HERE B AF H S 5F
of the term MEIBREERE
of the lease,
or 5 years
Computer equipment and systems 30% ERBZBERESR 30%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% B RERZE 20%
Motor vehicles 30% RE 30%
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon WE - BEREBEAEERLERAEETS
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to EREFREEMEEBRLEFNERIUHN
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss R BERREEMEE AR KEKE
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference BREEMGRBEIEEEEREECHAE
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of HE)RBERBURBR C FEFABRE °

the item) is included in the income statement in the year in
which the item is derecognized.

Inventories ®E

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable TEUNARAEEFEME 2RIEET
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. o NATDRAEELENESE - KEBE
Cost includes cost of purchases and where applicable, cost of BEXKAR (WER) BREAREFEET
conversion and other costs that have been incurred in bringing HERwAREREBAIAAMEEZ i
the inventories to their present location and condition. Net A o I B EETRBIERTEEMSHIE
realizable value is determined on the basis of anticipated sales HB AT ZRK AR LERTETE -

proceeds less estimated costs to completion and selling expenses.

Financial instruments BEIA

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the EEEERAATIASAKXZINA - A
balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the REERBERBRAVBEERNKERE - ¥
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial assets and BEERVBEEENRZATETE - iE
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction FBTHBEERMB AR (RRATETAE
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of =R UBEERMBAGERIN BEERGEZ
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets REGRAK  RIRERR N BEERTB
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are BRERERBAME) 2 A FEF AL
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets Bro WBEATEFAEER W BEESK
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. HHEEERRGZRINA  BINRKRER
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of REER -

financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables) are carried at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses. An
impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed
in subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognized, subject to a restriction that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognized.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below:

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including other creditors and accrued charges,
unsecured loan and redeemable convertible bond are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. TEEFBR (#)
Impairment losses (other than goodwill) HEEE (BRI
At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying REERBEALZEARTSEEVRENEE
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine JEHE NETZSEERGLRAES
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered BIR - WEEZAIREEEMGEERER
an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is EE AEECREEAMAZETKE S
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying BoREBEIRERART KRIEEHE
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An ERES —RAURCEHSEIR - BRZ
impairment loss is recognized as an expense immediately unless BAT REEBBARAREZLEAFEL
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another EfhREE -

standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying WREEBEREERED  EERTEMENZE
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its Hallel ¢ 8 2B st 8T R M
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount ENZEBEATEBBRRABAEFELE
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been HRZEERRAESEMREET KA
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the BB ZREBBANERARA K
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is FEBREERBES —HRREEHRESET
recognized as income immediately unless the relevant asset is R AIRZBERT ERZREEEBLIR
carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in which RIBBZEGE 2 EMEE -

case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that other standard.

Equity settled share-based payment transactions URAZEIURBINFZRS

Share options granted to directors and employees of the RIEANGEFRES ZFERE

Company

The fair value of services received determined by reference to FEXRB 2 ATED2ZERENK DA
the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is M RATEEE  ITREBHBEUNERES
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period with a ERY - TR (B BREREE) EE
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve). FEFELE AN o

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount REREETER SR ERAEZER
previously recognized in share options reserve will be transferred BRAZEBRERERMNEE - EBRER
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited or are B SR E W B ERTE - AR RER
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously MEREARAZ eERERZE 25N (B
recognized in share options reserve will be transferred to 1) o

accumulated profits (losses).

Provisions BB

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present EAEERBASHAERAREME  BEXE
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that EHEREAEBNZEERR - MERR
the Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provisions B BERESEREMARNEERRE
are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure BEEHB o IHHE YABBREATER
required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date, and MIRERE -

are discounted to present value where the effect is material.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are recognized as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognized when goods are delivered and
title has passed.

Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes income statement items that are never taxable
or deductible.

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the
balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and
deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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3 B @ 4 R A R A 5 New CHINESE MepiciNE HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% #% #& K/ &

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZ =TT F=F=+—HI5E

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4. TESHBE (&)
Taxation (continued) HE (F)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary KRB ARIREMEE CERBE A -
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where DHEARELEHEEE EAEEFRNE
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary HERZE ED  BEREZENEIGR
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will AR R 2 B SRR o

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each EEHEEECREENSELEE BRA -
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no WHORZE DB AL A B 5 R R A A 4
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available B2 BHEERAR

to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to BN ERERABRARNEEEELIEEEE
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is HEMEHE BERERBERZRTNRK
realized. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the income A HEMEERIES RRRARSEEN
statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited BT AZIER » BIREER BN R AR
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt NEIE o

with in equity.

Foreign currencies s

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group REREERNSBEEE 2 HBERERE - UK
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional ERZNEEEUIINZEE (INE)ETTZR
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its 5 DEIXSAHzEREXREREINE
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic E¥(NZEBCEXBREIZLERE L
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of EE)ANR - NSEER  UINEHEZ &8
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each EENERZEEACERERENNE - &
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign NFESRGANESNEZERER - T)
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance BETHEAVEEAZERBRESEHKRE -
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are BELKAGENAINESEZ FEREIER
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates TTEMBE -

prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary AEEEKEERREERBEEMEELZE
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognized RER RZSEHELHHECEZRERNRE
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except for REEBKEAEERGIEBIREFE—
exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms HovE®EBEMES CERLZHEAIRIN
part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation in RIEBRAT  ZERIZERGREMBHRE
which case, such exchange differences are recognized in equity NZBRARRAER AEFRERATFEA
in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences RZEEREBEMESCEREZRAARA
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at Bak EEAESFREEGMEENRARE
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for ERRIFECEEMEE 2 EZRRIN B
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items WERT  BEXEZRTRRAERANEZHE
in respect of which gains and losses are recognized directly in R o

equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are also
recognized directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Bf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZ =TT 4=A=+—HAILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognized as a separate component of equity (the
translation reserve). Such exchange differences are recognized
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or
after 1 April, 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising
are recognized in the translation reserve.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
The Group evaluates whether items of property, plant and
equipment have suffered any impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
the assets may not be recoverable, in accordance with the stated
accounting policy. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units have been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates.
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3 B @ 4 R A R A 5 New CHINESE MepiciNE HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # #& Mf &

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZE-TEAF=-A=+-BILFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY 5. BRCEHHERITRERIZEER

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued) R (%)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment ME BERIEZGTTRAEH
Management determines the estimated useful lives and related EREEENE BMERIREHE2GEFAIRAE
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This MREB o TEH o IhEGE HRERR
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual BRI ERZE BERRBEZERTH
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature FHBAIRBMNET MEEFTRHETY
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of FRERTEBHERBAMELEEY S E
technical innovations and competitor actions in response to HRBEERE - EREESHRURAFHIR
severe industry cycles. Management will increase the ERIERIREMTES L - M ELBR
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously FEOBERNEE R EEME M
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete e

or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment loss of trade and other receivables FEWERRHEMERREZHERSE

The Group’s policy for doubtful receivables is based on the on- AEBZEWRERERE DEFETGHE
going evaluation of the collectability and aging analysis of the 5 FEMRRIE 2 W B AT B M e BR R 0 A R dR PR
trade and other receivables and on management’s judgments. EREE s AEMmEIET c FEZFERBREL
Considerable judgment is required in assessing the ultimate REREFRARERSEELREHE 28
realization of these receivables, including the current BREFPERZERABARBEKERIER
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor, B URBREBEFERR 2 G RRRER
and the present values of the estimated future cash flows EHRE - WASERKEEREP 2HBRRA
discounted at the effective interest rates. If the financial Bl BHENRENTE  BASEAEE
conditions of the Group’s debtors were to deteriorate, resulting FEWREIN 2 EWE FRIE K A & YT
in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional B2HERBSE -

impairment loss of trade and other receivables may be required.

Litigations N

Management exercises their judgment in determining the EEEERAABENAREAZE ZFD
possible outcome of the Group’s litigations taking into account ARLBR AR UERAKREEEBER
the advice from the Group's legal counsels. Details of the HeBER - BEFRALTFBEIHENUBRE
litigations are set out in note 29 to the financial statements. Bf3E29 °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Bf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZ =TT 4=A=+—HAILFE

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, bank and cash balances, other creditors and accrued
charges, unsecured loan and redeemable convertible bond.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Certain bank and cash balances of the Group are denominated
in foreign currencies. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31
March, 2006 in relation to each class of recognized financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimize the credit risk,
the management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
regularly the recoverable amount of each individual receivable
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the management considers
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk through
issuance of the redeemable convertible bond as disclosed in
the financial statements. In addition, the Group is exposed to
interest rate risk through its holding of bank and cash balances.
The Group currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Kf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZE-TEAF=-A=+-BILFE

7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. BXERIREN
Turnover EEH
Turnover represents amounts received and receivable from EXEBERAFEHEEMMUENIREFE
outside customers from sales of products during the year. WRkER & -
Business segments EBoE
The Group comprises only one business segment which is the AEBEH-HEBHFAK  DEEHH
sales of healthcare and digital electronic products in Hong Kong. ERBREBEFER
Geographical segments HwEDE
No analysis of the Group's turnover, carrying amounts of HAREELRI0% L5558 D EEER
segment assets and capital expenditure by geographical location HERERTHERBAINEEEH LR
is presented as less than 10% are generated from or located ERNME - Bt - TERMEELS
outside Hong Kong. i o
8. OTHER OPERATING INCOME 8. HirEE WA
2006 2005
ZEEAE | ZTTHF
HK$ HK$
B BT
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF A BUA 281,115 4
Foreign exchange gain, net NI LY 5 0% BB 1,730 72,121
Service income AR 7 U A - 268,397
Sub-lease rental income SEBES KA 204,375 1,047,881
Recovery of bad debts previously written off U 8 % BT 4l 88 2 2 BR - 2,500,000
Other income Hopth Y A 342,315 910,684
829,535 4,799,087

The aggregate future minimum lease payments receivable under RZEERF=A=+—H RETTHH
non-cancelable operating leases as at 31 March, 2006 amounted REMHON—FAIBRKZ ARFERS
to nil (2005: HK$108,871) which fall due within one year. FEBRBAT (ZZETRF 108,871/ L) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Bf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 #E-TEAF=-F=+—-BILFE

9. LOSS FROM OPERATIONS 9. RKEBE
2006 2005
—EEAE | CZTTRF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Loss from operations has been arrived at REBEOHNBR T EE
after charging:
Staff costs: BIMA :
Directors’ emoluments (note 11) BEME (Hatr1) 663,124 568,800
Other staff costs Hft 8 TRA
- Salaries and other allowances — H i H At 8L 1,120,300 486,044
— Retirement benefits schemes contributions — RIKEFFT B3R 18,096 27,502
1,801,520 1,082,346
Auditors’ remuneration ZERT B 2 275,000 250,000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - - BMEREEBENE 25,095 274,056
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME - BEREHE
equipment ZRERE - 74,597
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWME  BERR
equipment Z BB 258,078 -
Inventories written off 7 & # 88 381,156 -
Allowances for doubtful debts REERB - 772
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEM
rented premises ZREHNES 445,800 1,176,000
Cost of inventories expensed FIERY 2 FERA 7,763,974 8,191,058
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B EH
2006 2005
—EEXRE —ZETRF
HK$ HK$
B BT
Imputed interest expense on the Bond (note 23) &5 2 HEFI BB (A1:£23) 90,153 -
Interest on unsecured loan wholly repayable BEREFANBHEEZ
within five years EEBERH S 353,525 347,892
Other interest paid Hih 2 A7 8 24,779 2,707
468,457 350,599
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Kf &%

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the Company’s

directors are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZ =TT x4

ZA=+—-BLHFE

"N EEZM=
ENIENARARSESZMENT

Retirement
benefits
Salaries and  Discretionary schemes
For the year ended 31 March, 2006 Fees allowances bonuses  contributions Total
BUEHN
BZ-EEREZAZT-HLEE ik HEREM RERA HE o EE
HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
iy BT BT BT B
Executive directors HEE
Mr. Wong Chun Keung EEREE(RN-TTRF
(Appointed on 20 July, 2005) tBZ+HEZA) - - - - -
Mr. Fung Cheuk Nang Clement BRefE(N_220%
(Appointed on 20 July, 2005) tAZTHEEM) - - - - -
Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia ERZME(R-Z2R%E
(Appointed on 20 July, 2005) tAZTREZH) - - - - -
Mr. Wong Mo Wah Gordon IREEE(R_220F
(Appointed on 29 December, 2005) TZAZTHhBREZE) - 241,027 - 7,000 248,027
Mr. Wong Cheah Foo ERERE(N_Z20%
(Resigned on 20 July, 2005) tAZTBE) - - - - -
Ms. Leung Oi Wah PEENT(R-ZTREF
(Resigned on 20 July, 2005) tAZTHER) - - - - -
Mr. Kam Yiu Ming Wilfred HRRLE(N-Z3R%E
(Resigned on 31 August, 2005) NA=+-HEf) - 152,000 - 4,000 156,000
Mr. Gao Junging REELE(R_EZRF
(Resigned on 20 July, 2005) tAZTRE) - - - - -
Professor Lin Daguan HRAZHE(R_ST0F
(Resigned on 20 July, 2005) tAZTHER) - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUHHTEE
Mr. Chu Kar Wing REREHE 96,000 - - - 96,000
Dr. Loke Hoi Lam BEMEL 96,000 - - - 96,000
Mr. Ku Ling Yu John ERELE(R-2T0F
(Appointed on 20 July, 2005) tAZTREZH) 67,097 - - - 67,097
Mr. Junya Kabeya EREGEE (R-220F
(Resigned on 20 July, 2005) tAZTHEE) - - - - -
Total ag 259,097 393,027 - 11,000 663,124

ANNUAL ReporT 2006 = 3 m



New CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED #7 28 Z # | 5 R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Bf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 #E-TEAF=-F=+—-BILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) M. E5ME (@)
Retirement
benefits
Salaries and  Discretionary schemes
For the year ended 31 March, 2005 Fees allowances bonuses  contributions Total
BAREHA
HE-BERE-A=+-ALEE e HeREY HERL HELR EE
HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
B BT BT B B
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Wong Cheah Foo BEERE - - - - -
Ms. Leung Oi Wah REENT - - - - -
Mr. Kam Yiu Ming Wilfred HRALE - 456,000 - 12,000 468,000
Mr. Gao Junging BRELE - - - - -
Professor Lin Daguan A2 HHE - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUKHTEE
Mr. Chu Kar Wing AEREE(R_ZINE
(Appointed on 6 October, 2004) TAABEZA) 50,400 - - - 50,400
Dr. Loke Hoi Lam EEMET(R_Z2MF
(Appointed on 6 October, 2004) TARREZA) 50,400 - - - 50,400
Mr. Junya Kabeya BABGEA - - - - -
Mr. Tsoi Chi Yin EFEAE(R-TENE
(Resigned on 14 October, 2004) TATEAFE) - - - - -
Total ek 100,800 456,000 - 12,000 568,800
During the year ended 31 March, 2006, Mr. Wong Chun Keung BE_TTERNFZA=1+—HIFE T
waived emoluments of HK$402,581; Mr. Fung Cheuk Nang BEEREME402,58187L  BREEER
Clement and Ms. Tong Pui Chi Lucia waived emoluments of B MEDRIE R E318,7108 T « B E
HK$318,710 each respectively. No directors waived any ZETRF-RACT—LFE  UEEEH
emoluments during the year ended 31 March, 2005. RAEMBS -
The directors consider that they are the only key management ESRE BERAEE E—TEEEE
personnel of the Group and details of their compensation have AB BBRRSEEECFBHER LN -

been set out above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Kf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZE-TEAF=-A=+-BILFE

12. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 12. BEM &
The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year BE-SZRF=ZA=T—-BLEE &K
ended 31 March, 2006 included two (2005: three) directors of BrRHEREHFALEERE (ZETHF ¢
the Company, whose emoluments have been disclosed above. ZR)ARPRIEE HMeER EXHE - K
The emoluments of the remaining three (2005: two) highest SECER=2(CTTRF - MB)RaH
paid, non-director employees of the Group are as follows: FEEEE2HEMT
2006 2005
—EEARE e
HK$ HK$
BT AT
Salaries and allowances e RoRR, 465,977 195,493
Discretionary bonuses B 15 TEAL - -
Retirement benefits schemes contributions R RAE T ET &R 18,096 9,790
484,073 205,283
The emoluments of each of the remaining three (2005: two) EM=% (CZTRF MRB)BRFHES
highest paid, non-director employees were less than EE 28 & 5 54 51,000,000/ 7T °
HK$1,000,000.
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the AEEVEMNIEGRRTALTEEES) XN
five highest paid individuals, including directors, as an TAMe  ERESMERSEIRNMER
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as CHEERIERBEREE -

compensation for loss of office.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Bf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 &% —

13.

14.

15.

TERE=ZA=+-BHLFE

TAXATION

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the
financial statements as the Company and its subsidiaries had
no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the year (2005:
Nil).

The taxation credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the income statement as follows:

13.

BIE
ARASERAMBRARARAEERNER R
W EE RGN Hﬂ(jtﬂ?%ﬁﬁ%iﬁ%lﬁ

REBNSHELBERE (CTTAF - E) -

AEEYHAAGRARK I HNBAYE
mF -

2006 2005

—EEXRE —ZEThF

HK$ HK$

B BT

Loss before taxation BAEE (1,332,011) | (3,425,660)
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate of 17.5% BRE1T5%(ZETRF :

(2005: 17.5%) 17.5%) A EZBEEMER (233,102) (599,491)
Tax effects of unrecognized tax losses ABABREER HBETE 233,102 599,491
Tax credit for the year REERELR - -
No provision for deferred tax has been made in the financial HREEHBRPRIVESE - WAL ENE
statements as the amounts involved were insignificant. BMEAGEEHIBE L BE -

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE EQUITY HOLDERS OF 14 FARARERAAREEE
THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to the equity holders of the ARFIBEERBEAERLGREAEEREBR

Company includes a loss of HK$493,492 (2005: loss of
HK$6,403,651) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the equity holders of the Company is based on
the consolidated loss attributable to the equity holders of the
Company of HK$1,332,011 (2005: loss of HK$3,420,760) and
the weighted average number of 442,729,453 (2005:
117,250,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year as
retrospectively adjusted for the effects of the Share
Consolidation which became effective on 7 July, 2005.

The computation of diluted loss per share did not assume the
exercise of the Company’s potential ordinary shares granted
under the Company’s pre-IPO share option scheme nor the
exercise of the conversion rights attaching to the Bond as their
exercise would result in a reduction in loss per share.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Kf &%

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZE-TEAF=-A=+-BILFE

16. % - BERRE

Computer Furniture,
Leasehold equipment fixtures and Motor
improvements  and systems equipment vehicles Total
BEERE B B
BEXE RE& SET RE By
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT AT AT iy BT
THE GROUP X&EE
At cost: A
As at 1 April, 2004 RZZEEMEMA-A 532,861 867,866 103,468 100,331 1,604,526
Additions nNE 203,000 19,368 60,084 - 282,452
As at 31 March, 2005 RZETZRE=A=1—H 735,861 887,234 163,552 100,331 1,886,978
As at 1 April, 2005 RZZEZERFMA-A 735,861 887,234 163,552 100,331 1,886,978
Additions NE - 48,750 40,688 - 89,438
Disposals e (735,861) (893,634) (163,552) (100,331) (1,893,378)
As at 31 March, 2006 RZEERF=A=1-H - 42,350 40,688 - 83,038
Accumulated depreciation it ER
and impairment: B
As at 1 April, 2004 RZEEMEMA—A 420,933 702,148 48,298 100,331 1,271,710
Charge for the year EERERME 143,878 70,127 60,051 - 274,056
Impairment loss REER 2,249 60,160 12,188 - 74,597
As at 31 March, 2005 RZZERF=A=1-H 567,060 832,435 120,537 100,331 1,620,363
As at 1 April, 2005 RZZTRFMA-A 567,060 832,435 120,537 100,331 1,620,363
Charge for the year EERERAE 10,000 11,099 3,996 - 25,095
Released on disposals HERB (577,060) (834,368) (123,541) (100,331) (1,635,300)
As at 31 March, 2006 RZFERFZA=1-H - 9,166 992 - 10,158
Net book value: REFE
As at 31 March, 2006 RZBBAE=ZA=1+-H - 33,184 39,696 - 72,880
As at 31 March, 2005 RZEERE=A=1—H 168,801 54,799 43,015 - 266,615
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Bf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 #E-TEAF=-F=+—-BILFE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RIB AT ZRE
THE COMPANY
FiNUNE|
2006 2005
—EEXRE —ZERF
HK$ HK$
B &I
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRG - EHAK 40,005,108 | 40,005,100
Less: Provision for impairment losses B R EE B RS (40,005,108) | (40,000,000)
- 5,100
The amounts due from and due to the subsidiaries as shown on KRR BEEBEBRAT BB ENHE
the Company’s balance sheet are unsecured, interest free and RAIFEREEF  2EREREREE -
repayable on demand. The directors consider that the carrying ESRAEEREENRSEREQTE -
amounts approximate their fair values.
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March, 2006 BAARAAMBLARARNZEEANE=A=+
are set out in note 30 to the financial statements. —HZEBEHRM B RENE30-
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B AR A H ft FB WK IR
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
KEE b NN
2006 2005 2006 2005
—EERE —ETRF —EEXRE —ZEERF
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Trade receivables, with PR R
ageing analysis: RIEER DT
0 - 30 days 0—30K 391,200 - - -
30 - 60 days 30— 60X 250,200 - - -
Over 60 days 60K £ 175,338 - - -
Total trade receivables JE AR FR B R 816,738 - - -
Deposits and prepayments & & MBI A 198,964 522,717 126,187 140,063
1,015,702 522,717 126,187 140,063
Notes: B
(i)  General credit terms offered by the Group to its customers are () AEEMERFREZ-REEHANETH
payments by the end of the month following the month in which ERXRHGANEZRHERE -
sales took place.
(i) The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and (il EZRABRRKRACEAEYVESRERLT
other receivables approximate their fair values. 1 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Kf &%

19.

20.

21.

22,

BANK AND CASH BALANCES

Bank and cash balances comprise cash held by the Group and
bank balances that are interest bearing at prevailing market
rate and have original maturity of three months or less. The
directors consider that the carrying amounts approximate their
fair values.

OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of other
creditors and accrued charges approximate their fair values.

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZE-TEAF=-A=+-BILFE

19.

20.

RITRAEHEF
ROTRRSHEFEERLASERBZAERE
BRZTHNEKFHAERREIBMAER=
BRAKNT ZRITER -ESRRBBHET
BHORERAERFE-

HttENRARETER
ESRRHEMENRAREFERACKAE
HWEERERFE-

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR 2. B —RESNE
The amount due was unsecured, interest free and fully settled BHRREREER  RERREFERNZH
during the year. B8 -
UNSECURED LOAN 22 BMERER
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
AEAREARQT
2006 2005
—EBEAE | ZZZ2RE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Interest bearing at 5.25% per annum REBS5.25%E 8 - 10,613,312
Interest free %8 - 1,537,835
- 12,151,147

As further disclosed in note 2(c) to the financial statements,
the entire balance of the Remaining Indebtedness of
HK$12,229,742.70 as at the date of the Deed of Settlement
was settled by the issuance of the Bond by the Company to the
Creditor in the aggregate principal amount of HK$10,000,000
with a term of 5 years. A gain of HK$2,229,743 arising
therefrom has been taken to the consolidated income statement
for the year.

MM BREM A2 —THE - FE
FRERRETYBHZ2HE 4%
12,229,742. 708 T AR A B A E #E A 31T
RN 42%10,000,0008 TFHRF2EHZ
FHAEE - Rt EE 2 WE2,229,7438 LB
BAREEZIEABREE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Bf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZ =TT 4=A=+—HAILFE

23. BOND, UNSECURED 23. BEEAEBS

As disclosed in notes 2(c) and 22 to the financial statements,
the Company issued the Bond with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$10,000,000 to the Creditor on 27 January, 2006.
The major terms of the Bond are as follows:

Maturity date:

The Bond is due and will mature on the fifth anniversary of the
date of issue of the Bond. The Company shall repay the principal
amount outstanding under the Bond to the bondholder(s) on
the fifth anniversary of the date of issue of the Bond.

Redemption:

Ten certificates in respect of the Bond in the principal amount
of HK$1,000,000 each were issued to the Creditor by the
Company. The Bond may be redeemed at the option of the
Company in whole (in an amount of HK$1,000,000 each), but
not in part, on giving not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’
notice to the bondholder(s) at their principal amount without
any interest.

The directors have assessed the fair value of this early
redemption right and considered the fair value to be
insignificant.

Interest:
The Bond shall not bear any interest.

Conversion rights:

The bondholder(s) shall have the right to convert the Bond in
an amount or integral multiple of HK$1,000,000 of the
outstanding principal amount of the Bond into shares of
HK$0.04 each in the capital of the Company at any time
following the date of issue of the Bond at the initial conversion
price of HK$0.072 per share (subject to adjustments).

Conversion shares:

Assuming full conversion of the Bond, the Company will issue
138,888,890 new shares of HK$0.04 each. The conversion shares
will rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing shares
in issue.

m ANNUAL ReporT 2006 = %
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BRE:
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FH BRI 0.0728 7T (7] FHR) Bk
BHREEXEE (£%51,000,000% T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Kf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZE-TEAF=-A=+-BILFE

23. BOND, UNSECURED (continued) 23. |IEHES (4)

Transferability:

Subject to the approval of the Company, the Bond may be
assigned or transferred to any party or parties other than a
party connected with the Company or any of the connected
persons as defined in the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has
undertaken to the Stock Exchange that it will disclose to the
Stock Exchange any dealings by any of the connected persons
as defined in the GEM Listing Rules from time to time in the
Bond immediately upon the Company becoming aware of such
dealings.

Voting right:

Holder of the Bond (or any part thereof) will not be entitled to
attend or vote at any shareholders’ and/or warrantholders’
meetings of the Company by reason only of it being a holder
of the Bond (or any part thereof).

Listing and trading of the Bond:

No application will be made for the listing of and permission to
deal in the Bond on the Stock Exchange or any other stock
exchange.

The Bond contains a liability element and an equity component
which are required to be separately accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 32. An effective interest rate of 7.5% per annum
has been used to determine the fair value of the liability element
at initial recognition.

L}

FARAMAR  BFAIBEREETHE
ARBRAEZANTHBIERLETRAUAEZ
EMBAEALTRIIZEFAL - ARFER
B X P EGE BRI AE A ER AR £ AR A
RECHEALTRETESCAMEER
& AEABXAREZSZEES

RERE:

BH (RETASO) 2HAABEEERE
BEF (REEFALD)BEAZENEREERR
RAZAMBRE,/ SRR EEFEARSR

RELHRE -

BELETREER
ZNNIE SO E i A )i N A A= O
HEXXFMLETRER -

E5OEREEEGHENENRATAE
TARZBEBGRBAESEDS o KR
£ 87 5% AERAREBETA ED
H2ATME -

2006

= 1 PY

HK$

BT

Liability element of the Bond as at date of issue RETRHZEFEESH 6,964,206

Interest payable & 78 -

Imputed interest charged (note 10) EFAZHEERE (Fra10) 90,153
Liability element of the Bond RZZEZERF=ZR=1+—H

as at 31 March, 2006 ZEFaERD 7,054,359

The directors consider that the carrying amount of the Bond
approximates its fair value.

EXZRARES

ZEABEBNHEEREAFE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Bf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 #E-TEAF=-F=+—-BILFE

24. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 24. KD 8 R
Number
of shares Total value
g ¢! #E
HK$
BT
Authorized: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEOIE T2 EBK
As at 1 April, 2004 RZZEZMNFEMA—H 2,000,000,000 200,000,000
Capital Reduction (note 24(i)) BIRRR 2R (i 7324() - (180,000,000)
Increase in authorized share capital (note 24(ii)) % 5E BANE in (K 3£ 24(ii)) 18,000,000,000 180,000,000
As at 31 March, 2005 R_ETRF=F=+—H 20,000,000,000 200,000,000
Share Consolidation (note 2(a)) B A oF (B at2(a) (15,000,000,000) -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each SREEM4B T EBK
As at 31 March, 2006 R-ZBEXE=ZA=+—H 5,000,000,000 200,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREEOIE T2 EBK
As at 1 April, 2004 RZZEZMEFEMA—H 469,000,000 46,900,000
Capital Reduction (note 24(i)) BRI A (JF F240) - (42,210,000)
As at 31 March, 2005 R-_ETRF=R=+—H 469,000,000 4,690,000
Share Consolidation (note 2(a)) B A o (B at2(a) (351,750,000) -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.04 each SREE4B T Bk
Upon completion of Share Consolidation R & Bt i (B it2(a)
(note 2(a)) 117,250,000 4,690,000
Issue of 450,000,000 new shares at HK$0.04 BREBERODBEHZET
each under the Share Subscription Agreement 450,000,000f & R E &
(note 2(b)) 0.047% 7T 2 ¥R 19 (Ff7£2(b)) 450,000,000 18,000,000
As at 31 March, 2006 R-BEAE=A=1-A 567,250,000 22,690,000

m ANNUAL ReporT 2006 = 3



3 B @ 4 R A R A 5 New CHINESE MepiciNE HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Kf &%

24. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Changes in share capital for the year ended 31 March,
2005
Pursuant to the special resolution passed by the Company’s
shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 10 May, 2004, it was resolved that:

(i)

The nominal value of each of the 469,000,000 then existing
issued shares of the Company would be reduced by
HK$0.09 from HK$0.10 each to HK$0.01 (the “Capital
Reduction”), as a result of which the Company’s then
existing issued share capital of HK$46,900,000 would be
reduced by HK$42,210,000 to HK$4,690,000. The credit
in the sum of HK$42,210,000 arising from the Capital
Reduction would be credited against the accumulated losses
of the Company; and

Immediately upon completion of the Capital Reduction, all
of the then authorized but unissued shares (including the
authorized but unissued shares arising from the Capital
Reduction) would be cancelled and the authorized share
capital of the Company would immediately thereafter be
increased by the subsequent creation of such number of
new shares of HK$0.01 each as shall be sufficient to
increase the authorized share capital to HK$200,000,000
divided into 20,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each.

The Capital Reduction became effective on 23 July, 2004.

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZE-TEAF=-A=+-BILFE

24, ALRERAE (4)

BE-ZEREZA=1+-BLEEEZRAE
-]
BEARAABRER-_ZTNFRA +HET
ZARRBREFINAS EBBZEN AR
R RBR:

(iy 2T Z469,000,0000% & IR A T
W15 & 1% 2 T (B f 0.107%8 T B35 0.0978 7T
20018 (THIRBRA]) - AR
2 ERIEAED TR A46,900,0007 T
1 Bl 98 42,210,000 7T £ 4,690,000/
T o HIE AR AR E A 2 42,210,0000% T3
BEERUEBALAT 25 EE &

(i) BEARBRATKE  ERB2BETE
RETRMD (BEERBAEELEZEER
REITRRD) B FUESE - MARAEZE
ERABENM EEBEZGREE
0.01B L2 ZEHEFTMRY - BEAFKRN
1% B LA 20% 5E AR AR 38 12 200,000,000
7T (9 4 20,000,000,0000% & f% /&
0.01 BT Zl’MG) »

MARAR -TROE LA+ AEH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Bf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZ =TT 4=A=+—HAILFE

25. SHARE OPTION 25. B #E

The Company's share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved on 1 February, 2002 pursuant to a
written resolution of the Company.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to selected individuals to subscribe
for shares in the Company as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group. The Board may, at its discretion,
invite any full-time or part-time employee of the Company or
any member of the Group, including any director of any member
of the Group and any advisor or consultant (in areas of technical,
financial or corporate managerial) of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries to take up options to subscribe for the shares in
the Company for a consideration of HK$1 each lot of share
option granted. The Share Option Scheme will remain valid for
a period of 10 years commencing on 1 February, 2002. The
option period shall not be less than 3 years and shall not exceed
10 years from the date of acceptance of option. There is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised. HK$1 is payable on acceptance of an option
within 28 days from the date of grant.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate
exceed 46,900,000 shares, which represent 10% of the shares
in issue as at 7 March, 2002, being the date of listing of the
Company’s shares on GEM, unless approval from the Company’s
shareholders has been obtained. The total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted to each individual in any twelve-month period
up to and including the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the shares in issue at the date of grant unless approval from
Company’s shareholders has been obtained.

Options may be exercised at any time during the specified option
period. The exercise price shall be determined by the directors
of the Company, and shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated on GEM’s daily
quotation sheets on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

No share options have been granted by the Company under
the Share Option Scheme since its adoption.

m ANNUAL ReporT 2006 = %
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # #& Mf &

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZE-TEAF=-A=+-BILFE

25. lBIR#E (#)
BB E R AR ABATRERAES S - B
AP RBETRREBREZ EAE LTS
REREFTEZAARNRTERBRER
TERARETIRNABRERLRIEE
BIRERTZARBRND30% -

25. SHARE OPTION (continued)
The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the pre-IPO share option scheme, the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes involving the issue or
grant of options must not exceed 30% of the Company’s shares
in issue from time to time.

26. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 26. A TS

Share Bond  Accumulated

premium reserve losses Total

B4 EE E5RE RTERE o

Note HKS HK$ HK$ HKS

it it BT BT BT BT

As at 1 April, 2004 RZZZTMEMA—A 19,008,723 - (72,350,837)  (53,342,114)
Adjustments arising from R R A E

the Capital Reduction L HE 24() - - 42,210,000 42,210,000

Loss for the year KEEER - - (6,403,651)  (6,403,651)

As at 31 March, 2005 RZZEZRE=A=+—H 19,008,723 - (36,544,488)  (17,535,765)

Share issue expenses BRHBITER (739,100) - - (739,100)

Equity component of the Bond &% 2 fR AV & 25 {7 23 - 3,035,794 - 3,035,794

Loss for the year KEEER - - (493,492) (493,492)

As at 31 March, 2006 R-EBAE=ZA=t+-H 18,269,623 3,035,794  (37,037,980)  (15,732,563)

The Company’s reserves available for distribution include the
share premium and accumulated profits (losses). Under the
Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands
(the “Companies Law"), the share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders
subject to the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of
Association and provided that immediately following the
distribution or dividend the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends may be
declared and paid out of the profits of the Company, realized
or unrealized, or from any reserve set aside from profits which
the directors determine is no longer needed. With the sanction
of an ordinary resolution dividends may also be declared and
paid out of share premium account or any other fund or account
which can be authorized for this purpose in accordance with
the Companies Law.

In the opinion of the directors, as at 31 March, 2006, the
Company did not have any reserves available for distribution
(2005: Nil).

AR DR E A 1 5 (B R RETa A (8
B) RERSHELIEFNERFE (KE
i) (TRAVE]) - AR RBRAEE A AR D
ERXARE - EAETARAABERK
MR - BRATERRAREREDIKEX
TikB% MARNEENAREXRBBRES
HEMER  DAEEDRRIABRE - 1R
BAARAKERMAA  RERAEAAF
EERAARERENRCENBEREEER
ATBREZEARETRETREAXAM °
ERBERBRBZRAOFAET WENABR
DRERAARAREA U AE 2 TR
HWESHRBEPRETRINM -

EER2E RN-EETNF=ZA=+—H ' ' K
AR (A2 AR (CFTREF
&)

ANNUAL ReporT 2006 = 3 m



NEw CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED % 8 = 4= & & R 2 &
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For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZ =TT 4=A=+—HAILFE

27.

28.

29.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

As at 31 March, 2006, the Group had commitment for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating lease
in respect of rented premises which fall due within one year
amounting to HK$12,320 (2005: HK$202,415).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is matched by
employees. During the year ended 31 March, 2006, the total
amount contributed by the Group to the scheme and charged
to the consolidated income statement amounted to HK$29,096
(2005: HK$39,502). As at 31 March, 2006, there were no
forfeited contributions available for the Group to offset
contributions payable in future years (2005: Nil).

LITIGATIONS
The Group was involved in the following litigations:

(@) A writ of summons was filed by two plaintiffs against,
among others, Wondergold Limited (“Wondergold”), a
subsidiary of the Company, on 4 January, 2005 regarding,
inter alia, a claim for breach of an agreement by
Wondergold and other losses and damages (including but
not limited to the damages for breach of trust by
Wondergold, damages for detinue and/ or conversion and
the net proceeds for sale of goods and the repayment of
HK$1,500,000 which was already repaid by Wondergold)
alleged to be suffered by the plaintiffs. The plaintiffs also
sought an injunction against Wondergold to restrain
Wondergold from selling or disposing of or in any way
deal with the said goods. The plaintiffs applied for summary
judgment by summons filed on 3 May, 2005. Upon the
hearing of the summons on 14 June, 2005, the case was
adjourned for hearing on a date to be fixed.

(b) A writ of summons was filed by Brilliant Wealth Investment
Limited in the District Court against Wondergold on 20
September, 2005 for arrears of rent, rates, management
fees, air-conditioning charges and mesne profits in the sum
of HK$568,371.55 and for damages to be assessed.
Pursuant to an Order of the Court made on 22 November,
2005, Wondergold filed its defence on 6 December, 2005
to deny each and every allegation contained in the claim.

As at the date of approval of these financial statements, the
above proceedings were still ongoing. The directors consider
that the outcome of the proceedings will not have a material
adverse financial impact on the Group.
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27.

28.

29.
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(b) Brilliant Wealth Investment Limited? —
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32 iR AR AT New CHINESE MepiciNE HoLbings LiMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Kf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZE-TEAF=-A=+-BILFE

30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 30. Mi B 2 B F 18
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March, 2006 RZZEZERNE=ZA=+—H ' ARAZWEB
are as follows: NAFBET :
Issued Proportion of nominal
Place of and fully value of issued
incorporation/  Legal paid up share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation form share capital by the Company Principal activities
ERf NG EEYS]
WKL/ R2H ERTRA
WEARRHE cERY EEER BRRE HEBAL TEER
Directly  Indirectly
E# B
% %
New Chinese Medicine British Virgin Limited Ordinary 100 - Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Islands liability @k REER

RERUHES company US$200
BREFAR  200ET

New Chinese Medicine Hong Kong Limited Ordinary - 100 Investment holding and

Limited o liability Lk providing secretarial
MBERRAF company HK$10,000 services

BEREARNE 10,0008 REERRRERER

New Chinese Medicine Hong Kong Limited Ordinary - 100 Internet based medical

(HK) Limited BE liability @k treatment and retailing
M E(EE)ERAA company HK$10,000 of modern

BREFRA 10,0008 Chinese medicines
NEBBRERZ
BERTRETE

New Chinese Medicine Hong Kong Limited Ordinary - 100 Inactive

International Limited B liability LiEk Emes

(Note (ii)) company HK$10,000
HEEERERAF BBREERR 10,000 T

GELD)
NCM Life Sciences Hong Kong Limited Ordinary - 100 Inactive

Technology Limited Bk liability Rl Emex

(Note (i) company HK$10,000
MELERHMRARAA BEREMARA 10,0008 7T

(Kt (i)
NCM Shoji Co. Limited Japan Limited Ordinary - 70 Inactive

B liability LiEk Emes

company JYP10,000,000
BREMLLF  10,000,0008 E
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New CHINESE MEDICINE HOLDINGS LIMITED #7 28 Z # | 5 R A A

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Bf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 #E-TEAF=-F=+—-BILFE

30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 30. B2 BFHE (&)

Issued Proportion of nominal
Place of and fully value of issued
incorporation/  Legal paid up share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation form share capital by the Company  Principal activities
g#1fT ARARE
AR/ k2@ BERTRE
WEAR LR BeEwH EEER HRRA HERDWL TEXH
Directly  Indirectly
E# B &
% %
New Chinese Medicine Commonwealth  Limited Ordinary - 100 Owner of the registered
(Website) Limited of the liability @R domain name of
MRE(HE)BRRA Northern company US$1,000 www.newchinesemedic.com
Mariana BREMRA 11,0005 B g
Islands www.newchinesemedic.com
TEEEH PASL-UN
BEHAME
Wondergold Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary - 100 Retailing of pharmaceutical
BEERAA B liability Lmk products
company HK$10,000 TEBEER
AREMLRE 10,0008
Harvest Rich Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary - 51 Retailing of healthcare/
HEERAA BB liability LEk skincare and digital
company HK$10,000 electronics products
AEREMRA 1000087 TERRE/EER
BEETES
NCM Group British Virgin Limited Ordinary 100 - Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Islands liability @R REER
(Note (i) KERAHEE company Us$1
(K& () BREARDA 1%L
NCM Healthcare Hong Kong Limited Ordinary - 100 Trading of health care
Limited Bk liability LEk products
(Note (7)) company HK$2 REEMES
MBERRERDA BREGAR 25T
(K& ()
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32 iR AR AT New CHINESE MepiciNE HoLbings LiMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &1 #% # & Kf &%

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 BZE-TEAF=-A=+-BILFE

30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

30. B2 BFH1E (&)

Issued Proportion of nominal
Place of and fully value of issued
incorporation/  Legal paid up share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation form share capital by the Company  Principal activities
ERf NG EEYS]
EMRL/ k2E BRTRA
WEARER BEWE EEEF BERE HEBDHL TEEH
Directly  Indirectly
E# M
% %
NCM Healthcare Hong Kong Limited Ordinary - 100 Trading of health care
(HK) Limited BE liability @k products
(Note (7)) company HK$2 REEMES
MBEERE(FE) BREADR 2B
BERAF
(Kizt()
Asia Honest Hong Kong Limited Ordinary - 100 Providing management
(H.K.) Limited BB liability @k services
(Note (i) company HK$1 RUEERS
AT (BE)AERAR BREADR 1AL
(Kizt()
Quick Faith British Virgin Limited Ordinary - 100 Inactive
Limited Islands liability LTER TEex
(Note (i) EERUHEE company US$1
(KzE() BREARA 1ERX
Notes: Btat -
() These companies were newly incorporated during the year ended () BERARAIREBE-ZTTRF=A=1+—HIt
31 March, 2006. FEHAMAL -
(i) Subsequent to the balance sheet date, these companies were (i) #EA®% ZERFAPIR_ZTZEAFHAN
deregistered on 4 May, 2006 and 27 April, 2006 respectively. BT FMA-TEHBEER -
(iii) None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at the (i) MEMBLAREEEMNRAFEE AR ARSE

end of the year or at any time during the year.

ERNERAEHFEZEBES
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

For the year ended 31 March, 2006 #E-TEAF=-F=+—-BILFE

M EEE

Year ended 31 March,
BE=A=t-HILEE

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
“TT-F Z—TE=F —IZTTNF —TTHF |ZZ2ERE
HK$ HK$S HK$ HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT
Results ¥
Turnover HEH 26,595,352 14,021,237 636,406 8,011,404 | 9,016,957
Profit/(loss) before taxation — Fi AT F/ (F1E) 2,424,505 (27,834,737) (23,882,091)  (3,425,660) | (1,332,011)
Taxation A (269,766) (3,848) (5,166) - -
Profit/(loss) before minority  R&T 4> % 5 # & A1
interest BH S (FE) 2,154,739 (27,838,585) (23,887,257)  (3,425,660) | (1,332,011)
Minority interest DERRER - 191,850 - 4,900 -
Profit/(loss) for the year BEEREAELEE
attributable to BH (EE)
equity holders 2,154,739 (27,646,735) (23,887,257)  (3,420,760) | (1,332,011)
At 31 March,
R=A=+-H
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
—TT-F ZET=HF —IZTWF —TTHEF |ZZBEXF
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Assets and liabilities EERER
Total assets BEE 42,297,332 20,409,345 2,523,679 1,767,985 | 15,596,161
Total liabilities and minority @ &E K
interest SRR ER (4,053,282) (10,295,478) (16,058,552) (18,868,978) |(13,606,674)
Net assets/(liabilities) EE/(BE)FE 38,244,050 10,113,867  (13,534,873) (17,100,993) | 1,989,487
Note: Bzt -

Pursuant to a group reorganisation to rationalise the structure of the REBEARAARNEBIMAIERET  ARBIRE
Company and its subsidiaries in preparation for the listing of the Company's MEBARETREEAE  NEBAEEAZER - AQA
shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, the Company became the holding RZZT—FNARNBKAREEZERAR - AAR
company of the Group on 6 August, 2001. The shares of the Company have BOR_TT-_F=AtHRE—ETBIME ZERL
been listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange with effect from 7 March, e ARELBEREREREARBELEEE -
2002. The Group resulting from the group reorganisation is regarded as a bt AEBHBBREDRBENEHTEERY IR
continuing entity. Accordingly, the financial statements of the Group have BARA—ERAEEZERAF -

been prepared on the merger accounting basis as if the Company had

always been the holding company of the Group.
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